CENTYS,SHTIST! IEIoNA! AGENDA MEETING NOTICE

DATE: Wednesday, September 27, 2017
LOCATION: Staples Street Center

602 North Staples Street, 2"° Floor Board Room « Corpus Christi, TX
TIME: 8:30 a.m.  Administration & Finance Committee Meeting

9:15a.m. Budget Workshop #5
9:45a.m.  Operations & Capital Projects Committee Meeting

ADMINISTRATION & FINANCE COMMITTEE
TOM NISKALA (Chair)
Larry Young, Sr. ~ Abel Alonzo

TOPIC SPEAKER EST.TIME REFERENCE
Roll Call - D. Linnehan Tmin. | -
Opportunity for Public Comment T. Niskala d3min. | -
Discussion and Possible Action to Approve the | T. Niskala 2 min. Pages 1-4

Administration & Finance Committee Meeting
Minutes of August 23, 2017

Discussion and Possible Action to Issue a A. Gaitan 3 min. Page 5
Request for Proposal (RFP) for Life Insurance PowerPoint
and Accidental Death and Dismemberment

(AD&D)

Discussion and Possible Action to Issue a A. Gaitan 3 min. Page 6
Request for Proposal (RFP) for Occupational PowerPoint
Medical Services

Discussion and Possible Action to Issue a A. Gaitan 3 min. Pages 7-8
Request for Proposal (RFP) for Long-Term PowerPoint
Disability (LTD) and Short-Term Disability (STD)

Insurance

Discussion and Possible Action to Adopt a R. Saldaiia 3 min. | Page 11 |
Resolution Designating Certain Individuals the |Attachments |
Authority to Sign Checks Ribif A
Discussion and Possible Action to Adopt a R. Saldafa 3 min. | Pages 12-13
Resolution Approving the [nvestment Policy, Aftachments

Designation of Investment Officers, Designation
of Investment Advisor and List of Approved

Committees Meeting Agenda Notice - Page 1




Brokers/Dealers

9. | Discussion and Possible Action to Authorize R. Saldafia 3 min. Pages 14-15
Staff to Enter into a New Investment Relationship |Attachments|
with TexPool Investment Pools Participation
Agreement, Completion of Documents Required
to Open Investment Accounts, and Designate
Authorized Representatives to Conduct Business
Transactions on Behalf of the Agency

10. | Presentations:

a. 2016 Defined Benefit Plan Audit by Collier, | R. Saldafia 3 min. Page 16 |
Johnson & Woods J. Shepherd [ Attachment |
b. [lnvesiment Reportffor the 2™ Quarter R. Saldana 3 min. Pages 17-18]
Ended June 30, 2017 PowerPoint
c. August 2017 Financial Report R. Saldafna 3 min. [Pages19-25 |
PowerPoint
11. | Adjournment T. Niskala Tmin. | -
Total Estimated Time: 37 min.
BUDGET WORKSHOP #5
TOPIC SPEAKER EST.TIME | REFERENCE
1. | 2018 Budget Workshop #5
a. Capital Budget R. Saldana 30 min. PowerPoints
b. Final 5-YR CIP t
c. Final L/R Financial Plan «
d. Operating and Capital Budget Overview &
Summary
e. Final 5-YR Service Plan G. Robinson
Total Estimated Time: 30 min.
OPERATIONS & CAPITAL PROJECTS COMMITTEE
MICHAEL REEVES (Chair)
George B. Clower ~ Glenn Martin ~ Edward Martinez ~ Scott Harris
TOPIC SPEAKER EST.TIME REFERENCE
1. | Roll Call - D. Linnehan 2min. | -
2. | Opportunity for Public Comment M. Reeves 3min. | -
3. | Discussion and Possible Action to Approve M. Reeves 3 min. | Pages 1-4 |
the Operations & Capital Projects Committee
Meeting Minutes of August 23, 2017

Committees Meeting Agenda Notice - Page 2



4. | Discussion and Possible Action to Approve the | M. Rendén 3 min. Pages 5-6
Request for Proposal (RFP) for the Law PowerPoint
Enforcement Services Contract

5. | Presentations:

a. August 2017 Operations Report G. Robinson | 5 min. Pages 7-18
PowerPoint
b. Procurement Update R. Saldana 5 min. PowerPoint

6. | Adjournment M. Reeves Tmin. | -

Total Estimated Time: 22 min.
On Friday, September 22, 2017 this Notice was posted by Dena Linnehan at the CCRTA Staples Street
Center, 602 N. Staples Street, Corpus Christi, Texas; and sent to the Nueces County and the San Patricio
County Clerks for posting at their locations.

PUBLIC NOTICE is given that the Board may elect to go into executive session at any time during the meeting
in order to discuss matters listed on the agenda, when authorized by the provisions of the Open Meetings Act,
Chapter 551 of the Texas Government Code. In the event the Board elects to go into executive session
regarding an agenda item, the section or sections of the Open Meetings Act authorizing the executive session
will be publicly announced by the presiding officer.

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, individuals with disabilities who plan to attend this
meeting and who may need auxiliary aids or services are requested to contact the Assistant Secretary to the
Board at (361) 903-3474 at least 48 hours in advance so that appropriate arrangements can be made.

Informacién en Espafiol: Si usted desea esta informacién en Espariol o en otro idioma, por favor llame al
telefono (361) 289-2712.

ot 7Y TV gt 7% s T gt T g

Mission Statement
The Regional Transportation Authority was created by the people to provide quality transportation
in a responsible manner consistent with its financial resources and the diverse needs of the people.
Secondarily, The RTA will also act responsibly to enhance the regional economy.

®

Vision Statement
Provide an integrated system of innovative, accessible and efficient public
transportation services that increase access to opportunities and contribute to
a healthy environment for the people in our service area.

Committees Meeting Agenda Naotice - Page 3



REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
ADMINISTRATION & FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES
WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 23, 2017

Summary of Actions

Conducted Roll Call

Provided Opportunity for Public Comment

Action to Approve Administration & Finance Committee Meeting Minutes of

July 26, 2017

4. Action to Recommend the Board Authorize the Chief Executive Officer
(CEO) or Designee to Issue a Request for Proposals (RFP) for Actuarial
Services for Defined Benefit Pension & Trust Plan

5. Action to Recommend the Board Authorize the Chief Executive Officer
(CEO) or Designee to Enter into a Month-to-Month Agreement Ending
March 31, 2018 with Wells Fargo Institutional Trust Group for Portfolio
Management of the Agency’s Defined Contribution Plan and Defined
Benefit Plan & Trust

6. Action to Recommend the Board Authorize the Chief Executive Officer
(CEO) or Designee to Authorize Exercising the Second Option Year with
Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. from January 1, 2018 to December 31, 2018 for
Depository and Banking Services

7. Heard Presentations:

a. July 2017 Financial Report
b. Second Quarter 2017 Reports
i. Employees Defined Benefit Plan & Trust
ii. Employees Defined Contribution Plan
8. Adjournment

s ol

The Regional Transportation Authority Administration & Finance Committee met at
8:30 a.m. in the Regional Transportation Authority Staples Street Center facility located
at 602 N. Staples Street, 2™ Floor Board Room, Corpus Christi, Texas.

Committee Members Present: Tom Niskala, Angie Granado and Larry Young

Committee Members Absent: Abel Alonzo

Staff Present: Jorge Cruz-Aedo, CEO; Daniel Benavidez, Esteban Campos, David
Chapa, Kelly Coughlin, Jennifer Fehribach, Angelina Gaitan, Bryan Garner, Anna
Hinojosa, Monica Jasso, Denise Jones, Dena Linnehan, Derrick Majchszak, Sharon
Montez, Victoria Reyes, Mike Rendon, Gordon Robinson, Sandy Roddel, Robert
Saldafia and Susan Teltschik

Public Present: Benjamin Schmit, MV Transportation; Gina Salazar, ATU Local 1769;
Barbie Baker, JBBM Consulting & Promotions; Lisa Keckler and Pat Mahoney, Wells
Fargo




Call to Order & Roll Call
Mr. Tom Niskala called the meeting to order at 8:33 a.m. Ms. Dena Linnehan called
Roll and stated a quorum was present.

Opportunity for Public Comment
No one spoke under Public Comment.

Action to Approve the Administration & Finance Committee Meeting Minutes of
July 26, 2017

MR. LARRY YOUNG MADE A MOTION TO APPROVE THE
ADMINISTRATION & FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES OF
JULY 26, 2017. MS. ANGIE GRANADO SECONDED THE MOTION.
NISKALA, GRANADO AND YOUNG VOTING IN FAVOR. THE MOTION
CARRIED. ALONZO ABSENT

Action to Recommend the Board Authorize the Chief Executive Officer (CEQO) or
Designee to Issue a Request for Proposals (RFP) for Actuarial Services for
Defined Benefit Pension & Trust Plan

MR. YOUNG MADE A MOTION TO RECOMMEND THE BOARD
AUTHORIZE THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (CEO) OR DESIGNEE
TO ISSUE A REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP) FOR ACTUARIAL
SERVICES FOR DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION & TRUST PLAN.
MS. GRANADO SECONDED THE MOTION. NISKALA, GRANADO AND
YOUNG VOTING IN FAVOR. THE MOTION CARRIED. ALONZO
ABSENT

Action to Recommend the Board Authorize the Chief Executive Officer (CEQO) or
Designee to Enter into a Month-to-Month Agreement Ending March 31, 2018 with
Wells Fargo Institutional Trust Group for Portfolio Management of the Agency’s
Defined Contribution Plan and Defined Benefit Plan & Trust

MR. YOUNG MADE A MOTION TO RECOMMEND THE BOARD
AUTHORIZE THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (CEO) OR DESIGNEE
TO ENTER INTO A MONTH-TO-MONTH AGREEMENT ENDING
MARCH 31, 2018 WITH WELLS FARGO INSTITUTIONAL TRUST
GROUP FOR PORTFOLIO MANAGEMENT OF THE AGENCY’S
DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN AND DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN &
TRUST. MS. GRANADO SECONDED THE MOTION. NISKALA,
GRANADO AND YOUNG VOTING IN FAVOR. THE MOTION CARRIED.
ALONZO ABSENT



Action to Recommend the Board Authorize the Chief Executive Officer (CEQO) or
Designee to Authorize Exercising the Second Option Year with Wells Farqo Bank,
N.A. from January 1, 2018 to December 31, 2018 for Depository and Banking
Services

MR. YOUNG MADE A MOTION TO RECOMMEND THE BOARD
AUTHORIZE THE CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER (CEO) OR DESIGNEE
TO AUTHORIZE EXERCISING THE SECOND OPTION YEAR WITH
WELLS FARGO BANK, N.A. FROM JANUARY 1, 2018 TO
DECEMBER 31, 2018 FOR DEPOSITORY AND BANKING SERVICES.
MS. GRANADO SECONDED THE MOTION. NISKALA, GRANADO AND
YOUNG VOTING IN FAVOR. THE MOTION CARRIED. ALONZO
ABSENT

Heard Presentations:
a. July 2017 Financial Report
b. Second Quarter 2017 Reports
i. Employees Defined Benefit Plan & Trust
i. Employees Defined Contribution Plan

Mr. Robert Saldana introduced Ms. Lisa Keckler and Mr. Pat Mahoney with Wells
Fargo Institutional Trust Group who provided information on the Employees Definied
Benefit Plan & Trust and the Employees Defined Contribution Plan. Ms. Keckler
commented the Defined Benefit Plan & Trust is a single-employer defined benefit
pension plan administered by the Agency, and vesting of benefits for all full-time
employees is between three and seven years, and discounted early retirement benefits
are available at age 55.

She also commented on the the Defined Contribution Plan and employees are required
to contribute 7.51% of their gross pay, yet are able to make voluntary post-tax
contributions up to 10%. She said the employee’s retirement benefit amounts depend
on the employee’s contributions and investment earnings, and they are fully vested in
their contributions and direct their investments.

Mr. Pat Mahoney commented on the current market status as the S&P 500 Index
Equity being up by 14 percent in some areas. He commented the Yield curve has
flattened in the 2" Quarter on Fixed Income Returns, domestic bond markets delivered
positive performance and some risk sectors outperformed. Mr. Mahoney reported on
the Investment policy summary percentage allocations on Equities were at a 53.98,
Fixed Income at 36.92, Real Assets & Alternatives at 6.06 and Cash & Cash
Equivalents at 3.04. He gave a recap of cash flow with market gains of a little above
$3.3 million with good improvements, also provided a list of investment funds,
comparative performance; 1 year over 10 percent, 10 year over 5 years and at a
reasonalble performance.



Mr. Mahoney reported on the funded status of June 30, 2016 at $31.5 million versus
June 30, 2017 at $35.1 million for assets. He also commented that participation by
fund shows employees selecting target funds over the other available funds, and
Ms. Keckler stated Wells Fargo focuses on the short-term plan numbers as the
employee’s returns are low. Mr. Mahoney conmented key changes cut the ratio and
line path, and he introduced additional investment classes, as he stated Cash Flow on
June 30, 2017 into the contribution plan was at $9.0 million of total funds, with the Fund
Array overview showing the types of fund available. He commented Performance
Grades and Market Values shows the different funds rating and how they perform.

Heard Presentations:

a. July 2017 Financial Report
Mr. Robert Saldana reported on July's total operating revenue at $160,416 versus
the $252,132 budgeted amount, or $91,716 under budget. He stated departmental
expenses came in at $2,646,713 million versus $2,615,475 million, or $31,238 over
budget, depreciation was at $708,333 versus $390,067 with total operating
expenses of $3,355,046 million versus budgeted amounts of $3,005,542 million, or
$349,504 over. Mr. Saldafia said sales tax revenues of $2.8 million were inline with
the $2.8 million budgeted.

Mr. Saldana reported year-to-date revenues were at $1.6 million being slightly under
the budgeted amount of $1.7 million by $66,103. He commented departmental
expenses were $18.2 million, or $597,948 under budget of $18.8, depreciation was
at $4.9 million versus budgeted amounts of $2.7 million, making total operating
expenses $23.2 versus budgeted amount of $21.6 million. Mr. Saldafia commented
that budget depreciation amount represents only the local share of the depreciation
expense while the actual represents the depreciation of both local and federal
portions.

In summary, Mr. Saldana commented the Agency’s financial performance for the
month of July fell short of budgeted amounts by $579,880, and the majority of the
negative monthly variance is attributed to higher costs associated with health care
insurance by the agency’s Human Resources. He commented other variances are
due to the purchasing timing that occurred in Purchased Transportation, MIS,
Vehicle Maintenance, and Facilities Maintenance departments. He said the other
shortfall is depreciation expenses being significantly higher than budgeted amounts
because budget depreciation amounts represent only local share while actuals
represent depreciation of both local and federal portions.

Adjournment
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 9:02 a.m.

Submitted by: Dena Linnehan



CORPUS CHRISTI REGIONAL
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

Administration & Finance Committee Memo September 27, 2017

Subject: Issue a Request for Proposal (RFP) for Life Insurance and Accidental Death
and Dismemberment

Background

The authority provides group life term and accidental death and dismemberment
(AD&D) coverage at no cost to the employees. Employees are provided with coverage
in both areas that is equal to two times their annual base pay to a maximum of
$100,000. In addition, employees may voluntarily purchase $25,000 life coverage for
their spouse and/or $10,000 for each eligible dependent at a monthly cost of $2.00 and
up to an additional $100,000 (in $5,000 increments) in supplemental life coverage. The
current contract is set to expire on December 31, 2017.

Identified Need

The Group Life Insurance was awarded to Minnesota Life in February of 2012 for a
three year base contract with two (2) one year options. The authority has identified the
need for our employees to have life insurance options available to them when
unexpected incidents occur. The authority has been pleased with the services that
Minnesota Life has offered to our Human Resources department and our employees.

Financial Impact

The cost of having Life Insurance available for our employees on an annual basis is
estimated to be approximately $76,345. This cost is split with a portion of about
$30,093 being paid by the employee for additional voluntary products and the remaining
$46,252 paid by the CCRTA. These monies are 100% budgeted within individual
operating department budgets.

Recommendation

Staff request the Administration Committee recommend the Board of Directors
authorize the issuing a Request for Proposal (RFP) for Life Insurance and Accidental
Death and Dismemberment.

Respectfully Submitted,
Submitted by: Angelina Gaitan

Diry offHuman

Jorge Cpyz-Aedo
Chie utive Officer

Final Approval by:




CORPUS CHRISTI REGIONAL
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

Administration & Finance Committee Memo September 27, 2017
Subject: Issue a Request for Proposal (RFP) for Occupational Medical Services

Background

The RTA provides medical occupational services as noted below, through The Doctor’s
Center. The current contract is set to expire on March 31, 2018 and we are out of
option years. The services currently provided include, but is not limited to:

Post Job Offer Physicals

DOT and Non-DOT Physicals

Return to Work Medical Examinations
Medical Services for Work Related Injuries
Periodic Physicals

Drug & Alcohol Screens

Employee Health Education

Identified Need

This contract was initially awarded in April of 2013. The Doctor's Center has proven
their ability to provide the necessary compliance with the FTA’s regulations and has
provided a satisfactory level of service to the RTA and its employees through
acceptable patient to doctor ratio.

At this time, the RTA is considering options that will be able to provide a more cost
effective means for the agency, and providing our employees with more enhanced
updated testing procedures.

Financial Impact

The cost of utilizing having the Occupational Medical Services on an annual basis is
estimated to be approximately $32,000. These funds are budgeted in the Human
Resources Department.

Recommendation
Staff request the Administration Committee recommend the Board of Directors
authorize the issuing a Request for Proposal (RFP) for Occupational Medical Services.

Respectfully Submitted,

Submitted by: Angelina Gaitan
Director of Human Resources

Final Approval by:

Chief Executive Officer

6



CORPUS CHRISTI REGIONAL
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

Administration & Finance Committee Memo September 27, 2017

Subject: Issue a Request for Proposal (RFP) for Long-Term Disability and Short-Term
Disability Insurance

Background

The Authority provides long-term disability insurance to full time employees who have
been employed for one (1) year. The Authority pays for the premium cost. The current
program provides coverage with a 90-day elimination period and benefits equal to
66.67% of an employee’s base wages. The policy provides income protection to
employees for total and permanent disabilities, as well as for occupational disabilities
and mental and nervous related disabilities.

The Authority also offers short-term disability insurance to active employees working a
minimum of 32 hours per week and the employee is responsible for the premium cost.
The current plan provides coverage with a 14-day elimination period and the benefits
equal to 60.00% of an employee’s base wages. The policy provides income protection
to employees for a benefit period of 11 weeks, for partial, total and permanent
disabilities.

Identified Need

The current contract for the long-term disability is through Jefferson Pilot/Lincoln
Financial and expires February 1, 2018 and we are out of option years. The current
contract for the short-term disability is through UNUM and expires January 31, 2013 and
we are out of option years. We intended to consolidate these two contracts into one
and solicit this as one RFP.

Financial Impact

The total annual amount for these benefit are approximately $104,820.00. This cost is
split with a portion of about $38,367 being paid by the employee for the voluntary
premium selection of the short-term disability and the remaining $66,453 paid by the
CCRTA for the long-term disability insurance. These monies are budgeted out of
individual department operating budgets.

Recommendation

Staff requests that the Administration Committee recommend the Board of Directors
authorize issuing a Request for Proposals (RFP) for Long-Term Disability and Short-
Term Disability Insurance.



Respectfully Submitted,

Submitted by: Angelina Gaitan
Human Resources

Final Approval by:

uz-Aedo
ecutive Officer



CORPUS CHRISTI REGIONAL
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

Administration & Finance Committee September 27, 2017

Subject:  Adoption of a Resolution Designating Certain Individuals the Authority to
Sign Checks

Background

Section 451.101 of the Texas Government Code allows the Authority’'s Board of
Directors to designate certain persons to sign checks and other demands for money on
an annual basis or more often if needed.

Identified Need
As per policy an annual Board Resolution is needed to designate those with signature
authority. The resolution and signature page are attached.

Financial Impact
There are no additional costs associated with this action.

Recommendation

Staff recommends to the Board of Directors to Adopt a Resolution (attached)
designating the listed individuals as having authority to sign checks and other demands
for money on behalf of the Authority.

Respectfully Submitted,

Submitted by: Marie Sandra Roddel
Director of Finance

/L

M Saldafia

Managing/Director of Administration
Final Approval by: % A——\
Jorg z-Aedo

Chief Executive Officer

Reviewed by:
Rob

11



Corpug Chrigti
pegional Transportation Huthoryy,,

®

Regolution

Designation of Persons to Sign Checks

WHEREAS, Section 451.101 of Chapter 451 of the Texas Government Code, provides
that the Authority may authorize certain persons to sign checks or the demands for money of the
Authority; and

WHEREAS, due to personnel replacements and changes, the Authority has determined it
necessary to revise the current authorizations on file with the Authority's depository banks;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF
THE CORPUS CHRISTI REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY THAT:

Section 1. The incumbents in the following offices are hereby designated as persons
authorized to sign checks or demands for money of the Authority subject to the limitations
provided in the Authority's Bylaws and by applicable state and federal law: Chair, Vice Chair,
Secretary, Chief Executive Officer, and Managing Director of Administration. Attached as
Exhibit "A" are the specimen signatures of the incumbents in such positions.

Section 2. This Resolution shall take effect as of the date a copy of this Resolution,
together with the specimen signatures attached is forwarded to the Authority's depository banks;
provided that, any checks or demands for money outstanding as of the effective date of this
Resolution which were properly issued under prior resolutions of the Board of Directors shall be
honored and given full force and effect.

DULY PASSED AND ADOPTED this 4th day of October, 2017.

ATTEST: CORPUS CHRISTI REGIONAL
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

Edward Martinez Curtis Rock
Board Secretary Board Chair

Federal Tax ID# 74-2390259



Exhibit A

REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

BEFORE ME, the Secretary of the Corpus Christi Regional Transportation
Authority, on this day personally appeared the following persons, who are the
incumbents in their respective positions and are authorized according to Section
5.02 of the Bylaws of the Corpus Christi Regional Transportation Authority and
the attached Resolution to sign checks or demands for money of the Authority
subject to the limitations provided in said Bylaws, and the signatures below are
true and correct signatures of said persons.

Curtis Rock, Board Chair

Michael Reeves, Board Vice-Chair

Edward Martinez, Board Secretary

LgmAt—

Jorge ruz-Aedo, Chief Executive Officer

Robert Saldaria, Managing Director of Administration

Sharon Montez, Managing Director of Capital Projects
and Customer Services

EXECUTED this 4™ day of October, 2017.

Edward Martinez, Board Secretary



CORPUS CHRISTI REGIONAL
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

Administration & Finance Committee Memo September 27, 2017

Subject: Resolution Approving the Investment Policy, Designation of Investment
Officers, Designation of Investment Advisor and List of Approved Brokers/Dealers

Background

In accordance with Section 2256.005 of the Texas Government Code (“Public Funds
Investment Act”), the Board of Directors of the Corpus Christi Regional Transportation
Authority shall annually:

+ Review and adopt an investment policy that governs investing Authority Funds (This
policy excludes pension funds, which have a separate policy)

¢ Designate the Investment Officers

¢ Designate the Investment Advisor

¢ Approve a list of broker/dealers.

This policy was last approved by Resolution on February 1, 2017 by the Board of
Directors. The new proposed Resolution for adoption is included as part of this
document.

The Investment Policy defines the parameters in which funds are to be managed to
ensure that the investment strategies exercised are effective and to the best interest of
the CCRTA.

Because the investing environment is driven by complex regulatory and Market forces,
CCRTA has continued to opt for a professionally managed investment portfolio through
the services of an Investment Advisor.  Patterson & Associates, a SEC-registered
Investment Advisor, is currently serving the Authority under a 2-year agreement which
expires on December 7, 2018.

Modifications to the Investment Policy

The proposed modifications are a result of the changes made by the legislature earlier
this year to the Public Funds Investment Act:

o Broker/Dealers are no longer required to certify to your policy. CCRTA will
continue to send each broker/dealer a copy of the policy so that they will continue
to transact on behalf of CCRTA according to investment guidelines but they are
no longer required to certify to it.

e Pools and Investment Advisers are the only entities required to certify to the
policy.

12



e Pools and Money Market Funds which strive to maintain a $1 NAV now have to
be in compliance with all requirements in SEC Rule 2a-7.

The body of the policy has not been changed. However, Garcia Hamilton & Associates
is being removed as an authorized Broker/Dealer.

Attached is a copy of the Investment Policy, which includes a listing of Authorized
Brokers/Dealers, for the Board's consideration and action. Legal counsel has reviewed
and approved this policy.

Recommendation

Staff requests that the Administration Committee recommend to the Board of Directors
to adopt a Resolution which approves the Investment Policy and designates Sandy
Roddel, Director of Finance, and Robert Saldana, Managing Director of Administration
as Investment Officers.

Respectfully Submitted,

Submitted by: Marie Sandra Roddel
Director of.Finance

Reviewed by:

Final Approval by:

Chief Executive Officer

13



Corpug Chrigti
pegional Transportation HAuthorsy,

®

Regolution

Resolution Approving the Investment Policy, Designation of Investment
Officers, Designation of Investment Advisor and List of Approved
Brokers/Dealers

WHEREAS, the Corpus Christi Regional Transportation Authority most recently adopted an
Investment Policy on February 1, 2017 in accordance with Texas Government Code Chapter 2256, the
Public Funds Investment Act; and

WHEREAS, Texas Government Code §2256.005 requires a review of the Investment Policy at
least annually and the adoption of a resolution incorporating any modifications to the Investment Policy;
and

WHEREAS, Texas Government Code §2256.025 requires a review and designation of an
authorized broker/dealer list at least annually; and

WHEREAS, the Board has completed a review of the Investment Policy, the designation of
Investment Officers, the designation of Investment Advisor, and the authorized broker/dealer list as
provided therein;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CORPUS CHRISTI REGIONAL
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY THAT:

RESOLVED, that the Corpus Christi Regional Transportation Authority Investment
Policy is reviewed and approved.

RESOLVED, that the designation of the Director of Finance, Sandy Roddel, and the
Managing Director of Administration, Robert Saldana, as the Investment Officers under
the Investment Policy is hereby ratified and confirmed.

RESOLVED, that the designation of Patterson & Associates as the Investment Advisor
under the Investment Policy is hereby ratified and confirmed.

RESOLVED, that the authorized broker/dealer list is hereby ratified and confirmed.

The foregoing Resolution was adopted by the Board of Directors of the Regional Transportation
Authority at a duly held meeting on October 4, 2017.

DULY PASSED AND ADOPTED this 4™ day of October, 2017.

ATTEST: CORPUS CHRISTI REGIONAL
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

Jorge Cruz-Aedo Curtis Rock
Chief Executive Officer Chairman of the Board



CORPUS CHRISTI REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
BOARD POLICY

INVESTMENTS

POLICY STATEMENT

Section 1.Statement.

This Investment Policy is authorized by the Board of Directors of the Corpus Christi Regional
Transportation Authority (the “CCRTA") in accordance with Chapter 2256 of the Texas Government
Code: The Public Funds Investment Act (the "Act").

Section 2.Scope of Policy.

This Investment Policy applies to investment transactions of the CCRTA operating and capital funds,
including sales tax revenues. This Policy does not apply to the investment of assets accrued for the
purpose of funding employee retirement benefits or programs, nor does it apply to trustee or escrow
funds which are invested in accordance with their respective contracts or escrow agreements.

These funds are defined in the CCRTA’s Comprehensive Annual Financial Report and include all

governmental, proprietary, and bond funds and any other new funds created unless specifically
exempted by the Board.

Section 3.Policy Objectives.

The CCRTA investment program shall be managed and invested with four primary objectives listed
below, in priority order. Investments are to be chosen in a manner which promotes diversity among
market sectors and maturities. The use of high grade governmental securities and high credit quality
money market securities is designed to assure the marketability of those securities should liquidity
needs arise. Investment decisions shall not incur unreasonable investment risks in order to obtain
investment results.

(a) Preservation and Safety of Principal. Safety of principal is the foremost objective.
Investments shall be undertaken in a manner that seeks to insure the preservation of capital
in the overall portfolio. Each investment transaction shall seek first to ensure that capital
losses are avoided, whether resulting from security default or erosion of market value.

(b) Liguidity. The investment portfolio will retain sufficient liquidity to enable the CCRTA to meet
all operating requirements which can be reasonably anticipated. Cash flow analysis will be
utilized to continuously monitor cash flow changes and guide investment decisions.

(c)} Diversification. The CCRTA will diversify its investments in an effort to avoid incurring
unreasonable or avoidable risks regarding specific security types or individual financial
institutions. Diversification will include diversification by maturity and market sector and will
include the use of a number of institutions and brokers for diversification, competition, and
market coverage. Diversification serves to reduce market and interest rate risk. Asset
allocation shall reflect an emphasis on high credit quality governmental investments.



(d) Yield. The investment portfolio shall be designed with the objective of attaining a reasonable
market yield, taking into account risk constraints and cash flow needs of the portfolio.
CCRTA will not make investments for the purpose of trading or speculation as its dominant
criteria. However, CCRTA intends to pursue active portfolio management techniques while
working within the guidelines of the Policy in order to enhance total returns.

In order to monitor portfolio performance and in keeping with the weighted average maturity limitation
of twelve-months based on historical cash flow analysis, the comparable period, current twelve ( 12)
month Treasury Bill will be used as a benchmark on the overall portfolio. The benchmark is designed
to monitor risk as well as performance.

The CCRTA may commingle its funds into one pooled investment portfolio for purposes of efficiency
and maximum investment opportunity.

PROCEDURES

Section 4.Investment Strateqy.

The CCRTA may maintain one commingled portfolio for investment purposes which incorporates the
specific investment strategy considerations based on the unique characteristics of the funds
represented in the portfolio:

(@) The investment strategy for operating funds has as its primary objective assurance that
anticipated liabilities are matched and adequate investment liquidity provided. This may be
accomplished by purchasing high quality, short- to medium-term maturity securities which will
complement each other in a laddered maturity structure permitting some extension for yield
enhancement.

(b) The investment strategy for debt service funds shall have as its primary objective the
assurance of available funds adequate to fund the debt service obligations on a timely basis.
Successive debt service dates will be fully funded before extension.

() The investment strategy for debt service reserve funds shall have as its primary objective the
ability to generate a revenue stream to the debt service funds from high credit quality
securities with a low degree of volatility. Securities should be high credit quality and, except
as may be required by the bond ordinance specific to an individual issue, of short to
intermediate-term maturities.

(d) The investment strategy for capital projects or capital project funds will have as its primary
objective assurance that anticipated cash flows are matched for adequate liquidity. The
stated final maturity dates of securities held may not exceed the estimated project completion
date.

The CCRTA shall pursue an active investment management strategy. The Investment Officer(s) will
continuously monitor the contents of the portfolio, the available markets, and the relative value of
competing instruments to adjust the portfolio in response to market conditions.

Effective cash management is recognized as essential to good fiscal management. Cash
management is defined as the process of managing monies in order to ensure maximum cash
availability. CCRTA shall maintain a comprehensive cash management program which includes
collection of accounts receivable, prudent investment of its available cash, disbursement of payments
in accordance with invoice terms and the management of banking services.



Section 5.Standard of Prudence.

Investments shall be made with judgment and care, under circumstances then prevailing, that
persons of prudence, discretion, and intelligence exercise in the management of their own affairs, not
for speculation, but for investment, considering the probable safety of their capital as well as the
probable income to be derived.

In determining whether the Investment Officer has exercised prudence with respect to an investment
decision, the determination shall be made taking into consideration:

(a) The investment of all funds over which the Investment Officer had responsibility rather than a
consideration as to the prudence of a single investment, and

(b) Whether the investment decision was consistent with the written Investment Policy of the
CCRTA.

Employees of the CCRTA and any investment advisor designated by the Board who are involved in
investment decisions, when acting in accordance with this Policy and exercising due diligence, shall
not be held personally liable for a specific credit risk or market price change, provided deviation from
expectations is reported in a timely manner and appropriate action is taken to control adverse
developments.

Section 6.Delegation of Authority and Responsibilities.

All participants in the investment process shall seek to act responsibly as custodians of the public
trust. The overall program shall be designed and managed with a degree of professionalism which is
worthy of the public trust. Regardless of delegation of investment duties, the Board retains the overall
fiduciary responsibility for CCRTA public funds.

(a) The Board of Directors

The Board’s responsibilities include:

»  Establishment and annual adoption of the Investment Policy and Strategy;

» Designation of a banking services depository for the funds of the CCRTA,;

= Approval of the list of broker/dealers for the purpose of selling investment transactions to the
CCRTA,

= Approval of the selection of, if the Board so desires, an investment advisor for the purpose of
managing CCRTA funds;

= Quarterly review of investment reports and performance;

= Designation of an employee(s) of the CCRTA to serve as Investment Officer(s) to be
responsible for the investment of its funds consistent with the adopted Investment Policy.
(Authority granted to a person to invest the CCRTA's funds is effective until rescinded by the
CCRTA or until termination of the person’s employment with the CCRTA))

(b) Investment Officer(s)

The Director of Finance and the Managing Director of Administration acting on behalf of CCRTA are
designated as the Investment Officers and are responsible for investment management decisions and
activities. The Investment Officers' responsibilities include the following.

* The Investment Officers are responsible for considering the quality and capability of staff,
investment advisors, and consultants involved in investment management.

*  The Investment Officers shall develop and maintain written administrative procedures for the
operation of the investment program which are consistent with this Investment Policy.



The Investment Officers shall be responsible for all transactions undertaken and shall
establish a system of controls and documentation to regulate the activities of subordinate
officials and staff.

The Investment Officers shall designate a staff person as a liaison/deputy in the event
circumstances require timely action and the Investment Officers are not available.

No officer or designee may engage in an investment transaction except as provided under
the terms of this Policy and established procedures.

The Investment Officers shall be knowledgeable of laws concerning the investment of public
funds, current investment practices and investment risks and opportunities as required by the
Act (2256.008). The Investment Officer shall obtain ten (10) hours of training within twelve
months of assuming the position and in each two year period that begins on the first day of
the CCRTA's fiscal year and consists of the two consecutive fiscal years after that. The
training may be obtained from:

- Government Finance Officers Association

- Government Finance Officers Association of Texas

- Government Treasurers Organization of Texas

- Association of Public Treasurers of the US & Canada

- Texas Municipal League

- University of North Texas Center for Public Management

- Patterson & Associates

If the Investment Officers desire to attend an investment-training seminar presented by
another organization for training credit, such seminar must be approved by the Chief
Executive Officer and the Managing Director of Administration.

The Investment Officers shall be bonded employees.

This Policy and its adopting resolution authorize the Investment Officers to engage in
investment transactions on behalf of CCRTA. The persons so authorized are authorized to
approve electronic transfers used in the process of investing.

If the Investment Officers have a personal business relationship with a business organization
offering to engage in an investment transaction with the CCRTA, that individual shall file a
statement disclosing that personal business interest in accordance with the Act

The Investment Officers shall develop and maintain a cash flow analysis to determine
available balances and project cash flow needs for the prudent investment of CCRTA funds
and the creation of adequate liquidity buffers.

The Investment Officers shall maintain current and accurate documentation on all investment
transactions and holdings.

The Investment Officers shall ensure adequate security and independent safekeeping for all
securities owned by or pledged to CCRTA.

The Investment Officers shall ensure that all certification and other requirements placed on
financial counter-parties are observed.

The Investment Officers shall monitor the credit ratings of all investments requiring ratings no
less than monthly. Ratings may be obtained from the rating agencies, Bloomberg, the Wall
Street Journal or other recognized financial reporting entities. Should the investments lose
the required ratings, the Investment Officers shall inform the CEO of the loss of the ratings
and options for the liquidation of the investments consistent with this policy.

Rated investments include:

- Obligations of States (other than Texas) and their agencies and subdivisions;
banker's acceptances, commercial paper, money market mutual funds and
investment pools.

The Investment Officers shall monitor the status and ownership of all banks issuing brokered
CDs owned by the CCRTA based upon information from the FDIC. If any bank has been
acquired or merged with another bank in which brokered CDs are owned, the Investment
Officers shall immediately liquidate any brokered CD which places the CCRTA above the
FDIC insurance level.



Section 7.Authorized Investments.

(a) List of Investments. The investment types listed below, and as further defined by the Act, are
authorized for the CCRTA. If additional types of securities are approved for investment by public funds
by state statute, they will not be eligible for investment by CCRTA until this Policy has been amended
and the amended version adopted by the Board.

* Obligations of the United States, its agencies, and instrumentalities with a stated maturity not
to exceed three years and excluding mortgage backed securities.

= Direct obligations of the State of Texas or its agencies and instrumentalities with a stated
maturity not to exceed two years.

= Obligations, the principal and interest of which are unconditionally guaranteed, insured, or
backed by, the full faith and credit of the State of Texas or the United States or their
respective agencies and instrumentalities including the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation and with a stated maturity not to exceed three years, and excluding mortgage
backed securities.

= Obligations of states, agencies, counties, cities, and other political subdivisions of any US
state rated not less than A or its equivalent by at least two nationally recognized investment
rating agencies not to exceed three years to maturity.

= Fully insured or collateralized depository certificates of deposit from any bank doing business
in the State of Texas and under the terms of a written depository agreement with that bank,
not to exceed two years to stated maturity, to include certificates of deposit purchased
through the CDARS program with a Texas bank;

* FDIC insured brokered certificates of deposit securities from a bank in any US state,
delivered versus payment to the CCRTA’s safekeeping agent, not to exceed two years to
maturity.

* Fully collateralized repurchase agreements and reverse repurchase agreements as defined
by the Act, with defined termination dates, and placed through a primary government
securities dealer with a stated maturity not to exceed six months. Flex repurchase
agreements used for capital projects may extend beyond three years as determined by the
bond expenditure plan.

= Bankers’ acceptances as defined by the Act with a stated maturity not to exceed three
months.

= Commercial paper rated A1/P1 or equivalent by at least two nationally recognized rating
agencies with a stated maturity not to exceed three months.

»  AAA-rated, local government investment pools in Texas striving to maintain a $1 net asset
value per share and in compliance with SEC Rule 2a-7.

= SEC registered money market mutual funds as defined by the Act and in compliance with
SEC Rule 2a-7.

* Interest bearing accounts of banks in Texas with FDIC coverage or collateralized in
accordance with this Policy.

(b) Competitive Bidding Requirement. All securities, including certificates of deposit, will be
purchased or sold only after three (3) competitive offers/bids are taken to verify that CCRTA is
receiving a fair market price. In the case of coordinated programs for the purchase of certificates of
deposit bids (CDARS) from multiple brokers will not be required.

All bids/offers for investments may be solicited orally, but confirmed in writing (or electronically) with
internal trade ticket documentation, written confirmation from the broker/dealer, and original
safekeeping receipt from the custodian.

(c) Delivery versus Payment. All security transactions, including collateral for repurchase
agreements, shall be conducted on a delivery versus payment (DVP) basis. The CCRTA's custodian
shall release funds only after it has received the purchased security into safekeeping. The custodian
must be independent from the broker/dealer. The DVP basis shall be contractually established.




To ensure delivery versus payment settlement no securities will be purchased through a subsidiary of
CCRTA's banking services bank.

(d) Diversification. The CCRTA recognizes that investment risks can result from issuer
defaults, market price changes, or various technical complications leading to temporary illiquidity.
Risk is controlled through portfolio diversification. The maximum limits for diversification on the total
portfolio are determined at the time of purchase and are established as:

Max. % of Portfolio

US Treasury Obligations 80%
US Agencies/Instrumentalities 80%
State Government Obligations 45%
Local Government Obligations 45%
Certificates of Deposit (Depository) 50%
Brokered Certificates of Deposit 30%
Repurchase Agreements 50%
Flex in CIP Funds 100%
Local Government Investment Pools 80%
Money Market Funds 100%

Limited to 80% in any one fund
(Not to exceed 10% of the value of the fund)

Commercial Paper 35%
Limited to 5% from any one issuer
Bankers Acceptances 20%

Section 8.Financial Counter-Parties.

(a) Designation of Depository

At least every five years a banking services depository shall be selected through a competitive
process. In selecting a depository the services, cost of services, credit worthiness, and
collateralization by the institution shall be considered. Collateralization of time and demand deposits
in the depository must be in accordance with this Policy.

Any banking institution in which CCRTA time and demand deposits are placed is a designated
depository and funds must be insured or collateralized under a written depository agreement.

(b) Investment Management Firm

The CCRTA may contract with an SEC registered investment advisory firm for management of the
portfolio.

Any new contracts with an investment advisory firm must be approved by resolution of the Board of
Directors.

On-going contracts must be approved annually by resolution of the Board of Directors.
The investment advisor must be registered under the Investment Advisors Act of 1940,
The Investment Officer shall require that the investment advisor provide certain documents including:

=  Audited financial statements or other acceptable evidence of financial stability
= SEC annual ADV certification and Central Depository Registration (CRD) number.



The investment advisor is responsible for making investments and carrying out its contractual duties
in full compliance with this policy and the Public Funds Investment Act.

(c) Security Brokers/Dealers

Investments may be made with or through the following institutions:
*  Federally insured banks
* Brokers or security dealers reporting to the Market Reports Division of the Federal Reserve
Bank of New York also known as “primary government securities dealers,” or
*  Secondary institutional brokers/dealers registered with the SEC and registered with Financial
Industry Regulatory Authority (FINRA).

The Investment Officer(s) shall maintain a list of not less than three authorized broker/dealers to
assure competitive bidding. The Investment Officer(s) shall require that all financial institutions and
broker/dealers desiring to transact business with the CCRTA must supply certain documents
including:

= Current year audited financial statements or other acceptable evidence of financial stability

* Financial Industry Regulatory Authority (FINRA) certification and the FINRA Central

Depository Registration (CRD) number.
=  Proof of Texas State Securities registration.

A list of authorized brokers/dealers will be prepared by the Investment Officer(s) and reviewed and
adopted at least annually by the Board. Each authorized broker/dealer will receive a copy of the
current investment policy.

(d) Policy Review Certification

CCRTA must provide a copy of its current Investment Policy to the investment management
advisor and also to each pool in which the CCRTA patrticipates in. The qualified representative of
said business organization shall execute a written certification in a form acceptable to the CCRTA
substantially to the effect that the business organization has:
= Received, and thoroughly reviewed this Policy and
= Acknowledged that the business organization has implemented reasonable procedures and
controls in an effort to preclude investment transactions that are not authorized by this Policy,
except to the extent that this authorization is dependent on an analysis of the makeup of the
entire portfolio or requires subjective investment standards.

The Investment Officer(s) may not acquire or otherwise obtain any investment from a person or firm
who has not delivered this written certification.

Section 9.Collateralization and Safekeeping.

All CCRTA repurchase agreements will be fully collateralized and all time and demand deposits will
be fully insured or collateralized. Collateral of 102 percent is required and must be kept safe by a
CCRTA-approved independent third party.

Authorized collateral for repurchase agreements which is owned by the CCRTA includes only:
* A combination of cash and securities of the United States or its agencies and
instrumentalities. The CCRTA does not accept letters of credit as collateral.

Authorized collateral for time and demand deposits which is pledged to the CCRTA includes only:
* Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”) insurance,
* Obligations of the United States or its agencies and instrumentalities, including mortgage
backed securities which pass the bank test.
* Direct obligations of the State of Texas or its agencies, or



= Other obligations, the principal of and interest on which are unconditionally guaranteed or
insured by the State of Texas or the United States or their respective agencies and
instrumentalities.

» Obligations of states, agencies, counties, cities, and other political subdivisions of any state
rated not less than A or its equivalent by at least two nationally recognized investment rating
agencies.

The CCRTA reserves the right to refuse any collateral it deems inappropriate.

(a) Pledged Depository (Pledged) Collateral

Financial institutions serving as CCRTA depositories will be required to sign a depository agreement with
the CCRTA and the independent safekeeping agent and in compliance with FIRREA'. The agreement
shall define the collateral and CCRTA rights to the collateral in case of default, bankruptcy, or closing and
shall establish a perfected security interest in compliance with Federal and State regulations, which
includes:

*  The Agreement shall be in writing;

+  The Agreement shall be approved by the Board of Directors or the Loan Committee
of the Depository and a copy of the meeting minutes or resolution reference must be
delivered to the CCRTA; and

+  Nolisting of pledged collateral shall be part of the agreement.

The following conditions must be met before time or demand deposits are made:

* Collateral must be held in an independent third party bank outside the bank’s holding
company.

»  Collateral will be maintained at 102% of principal plus accrued interest at all times,
excluding amounts covered by FDIC insurance.

* The bank will be contractually liable for the continuous monitoring and maintaining of
collateral and the required margin requirements.

* Pledged collateral will be evidenced by original safekeeping receipts and a monthly report
sent directly to the CCRTA by the custodian including security description, par value,
market value and CUSIP number.

»  Substitution rights will be granted if the bank obtains prior approval from CCRTA and if
substituting securities are received before previously pledged securities are removed
from safekeeping.

= (Collateral shall be reviewed on at least a monthly basis by the CCRTA's Investment
Officer and may be audited by the CCRTA at any time during normal business hours of
the safekeeping bank. A monthly listing of collateral from the pledgor shall include
pledged securities itemized by: name, type and description of the security, safekeeping
receipt number, par value, coupon, cusip number, market value, and maturity date.

» Collateral shall be audited at least annually by the CCRTA's independent external
auditors.

= Substitution of collateral is authorized; however, the pledging institution must contact the
Investment Officer for prior approval.

(b) Repurchase Agreements (Owned) Collateral

The CCRTA and any counter party to a repurchase transaction are required to execute the Bond Market
Master Repurchase Agreement. An executed copy of this Agreement must be on file before any
transaction is initiated. Collateral will be evidenced by safekeeping receipts clearly denoting ownership
by the CCRTA. Collateral will be maintained at 102% and held by an independent third party approved
by CCRTA and delivered on a delivered-versus-payment (DVP) basis.

'Financial Institutions Resource and Recovery Enforcement Act which governs the actions of the FDIC on default.



Section 10.Reporting.

The Investment Officer(s) shall prepare and submit at least quarterly, signed quarterly investment
reports in compliance with the Act and Policy. The reports shall summarize investment strategies
employed in the most recent quarter and fully describe investment, maturities, risk characteristics,
and investment return for the quarter.

The reports shall include a succinct management summary of the current investment portfolio and
changes made during the last quarter. This summary will be prepared in a manner to allow the
reader to ascertain whether investment activities during the reporting period have conformed to the
Investment policy and adequately maintained diversification and liquidity. The report will include the
following:

* Adetailed description of the investment position of the entity on the date of the report;
* A summary statement, for each pooled fund group that states the:
= Beginning market value for the reporting period;
= Ending market value for the period; and
= Fully accrued interest for the reporting period;
. For each individual invested asset:
= State the book value and market value at the end of the reporting period by the type
of asset and fund type invested;
= State the maturity date of each separately invested asset that has a maturity date:
= State the account or fund or pooled group fund for which each individual investment
was acquired (if more than one such account or fund exists).
Dollar weighted average yield of the portfolio and its benchmarks,
Earnings for the period (accrued plus net amortization),
Analysis of the total portfolio by market sector and maturity, and
Statement of compliance of the investment portfolio with the Act and the Investment Policy.

Market prices for the calculation of market value will be obtained from independent sources.

If the CCRTA invests in other than money market mutual funds or accounts offered by its depository
bank in the form of certificates of deposits or money market accounts or similar accounts, the reports
prepared by the Investment Officer(s) shall be formally reviewed at least annually by the independent
auditor, and the results of the review shall be reported to the Board by the auditor.

Section 11.Annual Policy Adoption.

The CCRTA legal counsel shall review this policy annually to ensure it complies with the applicable
laws. The Board shall review and adopt the Policy no less than annually and the adopting resolution
shall reference any changes made.

Last Approved by Resolution — February 1, 2017



Corpus Christi Regional Transportation Authority Investment Policy
ATTACHMENT A

Authorized Investment Advisor

Patterson & Associates
Austin, Texas



Corpus Christi Regional Transportation Authority Investment Policy
ATTACHMENT B

Authorized List of Brokers/Dealers

Bank of America/Merrill Lynch
Frost Bank Capital Markets
International FC Stone
Mizuho Securities

Morgan Stanley Securities
Mutual Securities

Piper Jaffray

RBC Capital Markets
SAMCO Capital Markets
Stifel Nicolaus

Wells Fargo Securities (money market funds only)



CORPUS CHRISTI REGIONAL
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

Administration & Finance Committee Memo September 27, 2017

Subject: Authorize Staff to Enter into a New Investment Relationship with TexPool
Investment Pools Participation Agreement, Completion of Documents Required to Open
Investment Accounts, and Designate Authorized Representatives to Conduct Business
Transactions on Behalf of the Agency

Background

The Investment Policy of the CCRTA, in accordance with the Public Investment Act
section of Chapter 2256 of the Texas Government Code, allows for the participation in
governmental investment pooled funds as part of the Authority’s overall investment
strategy. Governmental Investments Pools have a history of prudent management by
utilizing safe investment strategies with competitive yields.

TexPool is the oldest and largest local government investment pool in Texas achieving
the highest S&P rating of “AAAmM”". There are two types of investing accounts: TexPool
and TexPool Prime and both are qualified platforms within the Authority’s portfolio and
portfolio composition. Daily performance yields for the last 9 months have averaged at
1.02 and 1.2587 respectively. No minimum balances are required.

Identified Need

In reviewing the existing banking and investment arrangements it was discovered that
CCRTA can achieve greater portfolio diversification and improve returns by participating
in TexPool and TexPool Prime.

Financial Impact
There are no additional costs associated with this action.

Recommendation

Staff requests that the Administration& Finance Committee recommend to the Board of
Directors to establish a new investment relationship with TexPool by entering into a
TexPool Investment Pools Participation Agreement and completing all the documents
required to open investment accounts, and designating authorized representatives to
conduct business transactions on behalf of CCRTA.

14



Respectfully Submitted,

Submitted by:

Reviewed by:

Final Approval by:

Marie Sandra Roddel
Director of Finance

RobertM. Saldafia

?’ijjctor of Administration

Jorge Cyuz-Aedod
Chief EXecutive Officer

16



TexPool Investment Pools
Participation Agreement

AN INVESTMENT SERVICE FOR PUBLIC FUNDS

This participation agreement (the “Agreement”) is made and entered into by and between the Comptroller of Public Accounts (the “Comptroller”), acting
through the Texas Treasury Safekeeping Trust Company (the “Trust Company”), Trustee of the Texas Local Government Investment Pool (TexPool) and
TexPool Prime, (collectively the “TexPool Investment Pools”), and Corpus Christi Regional Transportation Authority (the “Participant™).

WHEREAS, the Interlocal Cooperation Act, TEX GOV'T CODE ANN, ch. 791 and the Public Funds Investment Act, TEX, GOV'T CODE ANN. ch. 2256
(the “Acts”) provide for the creation of a public funds investment pool to which any local government or state agency may delegate, by contract, the
authority to hold legal title as custodian and to make investments purchased with local funds;

WHEREAS, the Trust Company is a special purpose trust company authorized pursuant to TEX. GOV'T CODE ANN. § 404.103 to receive, transfer and
disburse money and securities belonging to state agencies and local political subdivisions of the state and for which the Comptroller is the sole officer,
director and shareholder;

WHEREAS, TexPool and TexPool Prime are public funds investment pools, which funds are invested in certain eligible investments as more fully
described hereafter;

WHEREAS, the Participant has determined that it is authorized to invest in a public funds investment pool created under the Acts and to enter into
this Agreement;

WHEREAS, the Participant acknowledges that the Trust Company is not responsible for independently verifying the Participant's authority to invest
under the Acts or to enter this Agreement;

WHEREAS, the Parlicipant acknowledges that the performance of TexPool Investment Pools is not guaranteed by the State of Texas, the Comptroller,
or the Trust Company and that there is no secondary source of payment for the TexPool Investment Pools; and

WHEREAS, in an effort to ensure the continued availability of an investment pool as a vehicle for investment of local government funds and simultane-
ously provide for enhancement in services and potential decreases in management and administrative fees, Participant and Trust Company desire to
provide in this Agreement that the Trust Company may obtain private professional investment management and related services.

NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual promises, covenants and agreements herein contained, the receipt and sufficiency of which
are hereby acknowledged, the parties hereto agree with each other as follows:

Article I: Definitions

“Account” shall mean any account or accounts, established by the Parlicipant in TexPool Investment Pools in accordance with this Agreement and the
Operating Procedures (as defined herein), which Account represents an undivided beneficial ownership in TexPool Investment Pools.

“Authorized Investments” shall mean those investments which are authorized by the Investment Act (as herein defined) for investment of public
funds.

“Authorized Representative(s) of the Participant” shall mean any individual who is authorized to execute documents and take such other necessary
actions under this Agreement as evidenced by the duly enacted Resolution of the Participant.

“Authorized Representative(s) of the Trust Company” shall mean any employee of the Comptroller or Trust Company who is designated in writing
by the Comptroller or the Trust Company’s Chief Executive Officer to act as the authorized Trust Company representative for purposes of this
Agreement and shall include employees of any private entity performing the obligations of the Comptroller under this Agreement.

“Board” shall mean the advisory board provided for in the Investment Act (as defined below).
“Investment Act” shall mean the Public Funds Investment Act, TEX. GOV'T CODE ANN. ch. 2256, as amended from time to time.

“Investment Policy” shall mean the written TexPool Investment Pools Investment Policies, as amended from time to time, relating to the investment
and management of funds in TexPool Investment Pools as established by the Trust Company consistent with the Investment Act.

“Letter of Instruction” shall mean a written authorization and direction to the Trust Company signed by an Authorized Representative of the
Participant.

“QOperating Procedures” shall mean the written procedures established by the Trust Company describing the management and operation of TexPool
Investment Pools, and providing for the establishment of, deposits to and withdrawals from the Accounts, as amended from time to time.

“Participant” shall mean any entity authorized by the Acts to participate in a public funds investment pool that has executed this Agreement pursuant
to a Resolution.

“Resolution” shall mean the resolution adopted by the governing body of a local governmental entity autherizing the entity’s participation in TexPool
Investment Pools and designating persons to serve as Authorized Representatives of the Participant.

FORM CONTINUES ON NEXT PAGE 10F 4



Article Il: General Administration

Section 2.01, TexPool Investment Pools Defined.

(a) TexPool Investment Pools are public funds investment pools created pursuant to the Acts.
(b) Subject to Section 6.10, the Trust Company agrees to manage the Participant’s Account{s) in accordance with the Investment Act and the
Investment Policy.

Section 2.02. Board.

(a) The Board is composed of members appointed pursuant to the requirements of the Investment Act.
(b) The Board shall advise the Trust Company on the Investment Policy and on various other matters affecting TexPool Investment Pools, and shall
approve fee increases.

Section 2.03. General Administration.

(a) The Trust Company shall establish and maintain the Investment Policy specifically identifying the Authorized Investments consistent with the
Investment Act and the general policy and investment goals for TexPool Investment Pools.

(b) The Trust Company shall establish and maintain the Operating Procedures, describing the management and operation of TexPool Investment Pools
and providing for procedures to be followed for the establishment of, deposits to, and withdrawals from the Accounts and such other matters as are
necessary to carry out the intent of this Agreement.

(c) The Trust Company shall have the power 1o take any action necessary to carry out the purposes of this Agreement, subject to applicable law and
the terms of this Agreement.

Section 2.04, Ownership Interest. Each Participant shall own an undivided beneficial interest in the assets of TexPool Investment Pools in an amount

proportional to the total amount of such Participant's Accounts relative to the total amount of all Participants’ Accounts in TexPool Investment Pools,

computed on a daily basis.

Section 2.05. Independent Audit. TexPool Investment Pools are subject to annual review by an independent auditor consistent with Ch. 2256, TEX
GOV'T CODE ANN, In addition, reviews of TexPool Investment Pools may be conducted by the State Auditor’s Office and the Comptroller’s office. The
Trust Company may obtain such legal, accounting, financial or other professional services as it deems necessary or appropriate to assist TexPool
Investment Pools in meeting its goals and objectives.

Section 2.06. Liability. Any liability of the Comptroller, the Comptroller's office, the Trust Company, representatives or agents of the Trust Company,
any Comptroller employee, Trust Company or any member of the Board for any loss, damage or claim, including losses from investments and
transfers, to the Participant shall be limited to the full extent allowed by applicable laws. The Trust Company’s responsibilities hereunder are limited
to the management and investment of TexPool Investment Pools and the providing of reports and information herein required.

Article lll: Participant Requirement

Section 3.01. The Participation Agreement. The Participant must execute this Agreement and provide a Resolution authorizing participation in
TexPool Investment Pools and designating persons to serve as Authorized Representatives of the Participant and any other documents as are required
under, and substantially in the form prescribed by, the Operating Procedures before depositing any funds into TexPool Investment Pools. The
Participant must provide an updated Resolution designating Authorized Representatives within 5 business days of the departure of any Authorized
Representative of the Participant.

Section 3.02. Operating Procedures

(a) The Participant acknowledges receipt of a copy of the Operating Procedures. The Operating Procedures describe in detail the procedures required
for the establishment of accounts, deposits to and withdrawals from TexPool Investment Pools, and related information.

(b) The Operating Procedures may be modified by the Trust Company as appropriate to remain consistent with established banking practices and
capabilities and when such modification is deemed necessary to improve the operation of TexPool Investment Pools,

(c) The Participant hereby concurs with and agrees to abide by the Operating Procedures.

Article IV: Investments

Section 4.01. Investments. All monies held in TexPool Investment Pools shall be invested and reinvested by the Trust Company or Authorized
Representatives of the Trust Company only in Authorized Investments in accordance with the Agreement, the Investment Policy and the Investment
Act. Participant hereby concurs with any such investment so made by the Trust Company. Available funds of TexPool Investment Pools that are
uninvested may be held at the Trust Company’s account at the Federal Reserve Bank of Dallas, or any designated custodian account, or with a
custodian selected by the Trust Company. All investment assets and collateral will be in the possession of the Trust Company and held in its book-
entry safekeeping account at the Federal Reserve Bank, any designated custodian account, or with a custodian selected by the Trust Company.

Section 4.02. Failed Investment Transaction. In the extraordinary event that a purchase of securities results in a failed settlement, any resulting
uninvested funds shall remain in the Trust Company’s Federal Bank of Dallas account, any designated custodian account or with a custodian selected
by the Trust Company. If an alternative investment can be secured after the failure of the trade to settle, TexPool Investment Pools will receive all the
income earnings, including but not limited to, any compensation from the purchaser failing in the trade and the interest income from the alternative
investment.

Section 4.03. Investment Earnings and Losses Allocation. All interest earnings in TexPool Investment Pools will be valued daily and credited to the
Participant's Accounts monthly, on a pro rata allocation basis. All losses, if any, resulting from the investment of monies in TexPool shall also be allocat-
ed on a pro rata allocation basis. All earnings and losses will be allocated to the Participant's Accounts in accordance with generally accepted account-
ing procedures.

Section 4.04. Commingling of Accounts. Participant agrees that monies deposited in TexPool and TexPool Prime, may be commingled with all other
monies held in TexPool and TexPool Prime, respectively for purposes of common investment and operational efficiency. However, each Participant will
have separate Accounts on the books and records of TexPool Investment Pools, as further provided for in the Operaling Procedures.

FORM CONTINUES ON NEXT PAGE 2 OF4



Article V: Fees, Expenses and Reports

Section 5.01. Fees and Expenses. The Parlicipant agrees to pay the amount set forth in the fee schedule. Participant agrees that all fees shall be
directly and automatically assessed and charged against the Participant's Accounts. The basic service fee shall be calculated as a reduction in the daily
income earned, thus only the net income shall be credited to the Participant’'s Account. Fees for special services shall be charged to each Participant's
account as they are incurred or performed. A schedule of fees shall be provided to the Participant annually. Each Participant will be notified thirty (30)
days prior to the effective date of any change in the fee schedule.

Section 5.02. Reports. A monthly statement will be mailed to the Participant within the first five (5) business days of the succeeding month. The
monthly statement shall include a detailed listing of the balance in the Participant’s Accounts as of the date of the statement; all account activity,
including deposits and withdrawals; the daily and monthly yield information; and any special fees and expenses charged. Additionally, copies of the
Participant’s reports in physical or computer form will be maintained for a minimum of three prior fiscal years. All records shall be available for
inspection at all reasonable hours of the business day and under reasonable conditions.

Section 5.03. Confidentiality. The Trust Company and any private entity acting on behalf of the Trust Company for purposes of this Agreement will
maintain the confidentiality of the Participant’s Accounts, subject to the Public Information Act, TEX GOV'T CODE ANN. ch. 552, as amended.

Article VI: Miscellaneous

Section 6.01. Notices. Any notices, Letters of Instructions or other information required or permitted to be given hereunder shall be submitted in writing
and shall be deemed duly given when deposited in the U.S. mail postage prepaid or successfully transmitted via facsimile addressed to the parties as
follows:

To the Participant:

[Corpus Christi Regional Transportation Authority |
Participant

|602 N. Staples |
Address

|Corpus Christi, TX 78401 l
City, State, Zip

|31 6] 1]2]8[9]2[7] 1|2 [3]6]1]8]8]3]1]9]8]3]

Telephone Fax

To Trust Company with respect to contractual matters or disputes under this Agreement:

Texas Treasury Safekeeping Trust Company
Attn: TexPool Investment Pools

Rusk State Office Building

208 East 10th Street

Austin, TX 78701

Telephone: (512) 463-3716

FAX No.: (512) 463-0823

To TexPool Investment Pools with respect to operational matters, including enroliment documents; changes to Authorized Representatives;
Bank Information Sheets; initiation of deposits or withdrawals of funds; changes to addresses; audit confirmation requests; and account inquiry:

TexPool Participant Services

C/O Federated Investors Inc.

1001 Texas Ave., Suite 1400

Houston, TX 77002

Telephone: 1-866-839-7665 (1-866-TEX-POOL)
FAX No.: 1-866-839-3291 (1-866-TEX-FAX1)

The Participant and the Trust Company agree to notify the other of any change affecting this information and agree that unless and until so notified, the
other party shall be entitled to rely on the last information provided.

Section 6.02. Taxpayer ldentification Number. The Participant’s taxpayer identification number assigned by the Internal Revenue Service is:
74-2390259 . The Participant hereby agrees to notify the Trust Company of any change affecting this Taxpayer Identification number and
agrees that unless and until so notifies, the Trust Company shall be entitled to rely on same in providing any and all reports or other information neces-
sary or required by the Federal tax laws as amended from time to time.

Section 6.03. Severability. If any provision of this Agreement shall be held or deemed to be in fact illegal, incperative or unenforceable, the same shall
not affect any other provision or provisions herein contained or render the same invalid, inoperative or unenforceable to any extent whatsoever.

Section 6.04. Execution of Counterparts. This Agreement may be simultaneously executed in several separate counterparts, each of which shall be
an original and all of which shall constitute but one and the same instrument.

Section 6.05. Applicable Law. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Texas. Venue for any
dispute under this Agreement shall be in Travis County, Texas.

FORM CONTINUES ON NEXT PAGE 30F4



Article VI: Miscellaneous (continued)

Section 6.06. Captions. The captions or headings in this Agreement are for convenience only and in no way defined, limit or describe the scope or
intent of any provisions, articles or sections of this Agreement.

Section 6.07. Amendments.

(a) The Trust Company shall advise the Participant in writing of any amendments to this Agreement no less than 45 days prior to the effective date of
such amendment. The Participant may ratify the proposed amendment of this Agreement by letter to the Trust Company. If the Participant elects not
to ratify the amendment, the Participant may terminate this Agreement in accordance with Section 6.08. In the event the Participant fails to respond
in writing to a notice of amendment prior to the effective date of such amendment, this Agreement shall be deemed amended.

{b) The Trust Company may periodically revise the Operating Procedures from time to time as it deems necessary for the efficient operation of TexPool
Investment Pools. The Participant will be bound by any amendment to the Operating Procedures with respect to any transaction occurring subse-
quent to the time such amendment takes effect, provided, however, that no such amendment shall affect the Participant's right to cease to be a
Participant.

Section 6.08. Termination. This Agreement may be terminated by either party hereto, with or without cause, by tendering 30 days prior written notice

in the manner set forth in Section 6.01 hereof.

Section 6.09. Term. Unless terminated in accordance with Section 6.08, this Agreement shall be automatically renewed on each anniversary date
hereof.

Section 6.10. Assignment. The Trust Company may enter into an agreement with a third party investment manager to perform its obligations and
service under this Agreement, provided that such third parly investment manager shall manage TexPool Investment Pools according to the Investment
Act, Investment Policy and in a manner consistent with that directed by the Trust Company. The Trust Company also shall have the right to assign its
rights and obligations under the Agreement to a third party investment manager if the Trust Company determines that such assignment is in the best
interest of the State and Participants. In the event a successor pool to TexPool or TexPool Prime is deemed by the Trust Company to be in the best
interest of the State and the Participant, the Trust Company may take any action it deems necessary to assign its rights and benefits under any third
party agreements and transfer the assets from TexPool Investment Pools o any successor pool.

In Witness Whereof, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed as of the dates set forth below, and the Agreement shall be
effective as of the latest such date.

TEXAS TREASURY SAFEKEEPING TRUST COMPANY

PARTICIPANT: COMPTROLLER OF PUBLIC ACCOUNTS

| | |
Signature Signature

|Curtis Rock | | |
Printed Name Printed Name

|Chair, CCRTA Board of Directors | | |
Title Title

(I I I O I (O I

Date Date

CERTIFICATE OF INCUMBENCY:

The preceding signatory is a duly appointed, acting, and qualified officer of the Participant, who, in the capacity set forth above is authorized to execute
this Agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, | have duly executed this certificate as of the day of , 20

l |

Signature

|Eddie Martinez |

Printed Name

|Secretary, CCRTA Board of Directors |

Title

ORIGINAL SIGNATURE AND DOCUMENT REQUIRED TEX-ENROLL 4 OF 4
TexPool Participant Services Managed and -

1001 Texas Avenue, Suite 1400 + Houston, TX 77002 Serviced by FederatEd ®

Phone: 1-866-TEXPOQOL (839-7665) + Fax: 1-866-839-3291 » www.texpool.com G4534021 (9/15)



Bank Information Sheet

AN INVESTMENT SERVICE FOR PUBLIC FUNDS I Ol 8' 2 | 3 I 2 | 0 | 1 |7 |
Effective Date*

Please complete this form to add new banking Instructions, or to change or delete existing banking instructions,
*Required Fields

1. Participant Information

|Corpus Christi Regional Transportation Authority |
Participant Name*

|602 N. Staples | |Corpus Christi | | TIX| |7]8]4]0]1]
Street Address® City* State* Zip Code*

|602 N. Staples | |Corpus Christi | |TIX] |7]8]4]0]1]
Mailing Address* City* State* Zip Code*

|Nueces | [mroddel@ccrta.org ]
County™* Email

[Marie Sandra Roddel | [316]119]0]3]3]4]7]o| |3]6]118]8]|3]1]9]|8]3]
Primary Representative* Phone Number* Fax Number*

2. Instructions

[ofojofof1] | 1 | | | L 1 | [ | | |Corpus Christi Regional Transportation Authority |

Location Number* Account Number Account Name*

449 TexPool (4] 590 TexPool Prime

Please check all that apply.

Add New Account [0 Add New Banking Instructions  [] Change Banking Instructions [J Delete Banking Instructions
Wire and ACH" J wire Only [0 ACH Only*
[ Primary O Primary O Primary

3. Bank Information

|Wells Fargo Bank, NA | 1615 N Upper Broadway St |
Bank Name™ Bank Address®

|Corpus Christi | 17]8]4]0]1] [Nueces |

City* Texas Zip Code* County*

[sl8]oj8lojof3]of3| [9]2]2]|6]6]3|1]6]|8]8]

Bank ABA Number* Bank Account Number*

|[Main Account | |Orlando Saenz - (281) 652-4029 ]
Bank Account Name* Bank Contact

Credit Information

Correspondent Bank Information (if applicable)

l 1 0 O I O O

Correspondent Bank Name/City Correspondent Bank ABA Number

I L P L LE

Correspondent Bank Account Name Correspondent Bank Account Number

FORM CONTINUES ON NEXT PAGE 10F 2



(A I I

Account Number* Location Number*

4. Signature

CONFIRM THE INSTRUCTIONS FOR WIRE AND ACH TRANSFERS WITH YOUR LOCAL BANK. ACH INSTRUCTIONS MAY VARY FROM YOUR
BANK’S WIRING INSTRUCTIONS IF THE LOCAL BANK IS NOT ON-LINE WITH THE FEDERAL RESERVE. IF ACH INSTRUCTIONS DIFFER
FROM WIRING INSTRUCTIONS, PLEASE COMPLETE AN ADDITIONAL BANK INFORMATION SHEET.

'If ACH availability is selected, | hereby authorize State Street Bank to directly deposit and withdraw funds by means of ACH electronic transfer to and from
the financial institution and the account designated above (“Designated Account”). | agree that this authorization may be withdrawn with at least 45-days
advance written notice to TexPool Participant Services. | understand that the Trust Company reserves the right to discontinue ACH electronic transfer with-
out advance notice. | also authorize State Street Bank to deduct from the Designated Account or from subsequent deposits made to the Designated
Account all amounts deposited in error, Likewise, | authorize State Street Bank to credit all amounts withdrawn in error to Designated Account,

Note: This authorization must be executed by a current Authorized Representative of the Participant as set forth in the duly enacted Resolution of the
Participant, which is on file with TexPool,

As a current Authorized Representative, | certify that the above information is both true and correct.

| | [o]8]2]3]2]|0]1]7]

Signature of First Authorized Representative® Date*

[Marie Sandra Roddel | [3]6]1]9]0]|3]3|4]|7]0]
Printed Name* Telephone Number*

|Director of Finance |

Title*

I | [o]8]2]3]2]|0]1]7]

Signature of Second Authorized Representative* Date*

|[Robert Saldana | 13]6]/119]0]3]3]|4]|9]0|
Printed Name* Telephone Number*

[Managing Director of Administration |

Title*

5. Mailing Instructions

The completed Bank Information Sheet can be faxed to TexPool Participant Services at 1-866-839-3291. Please mail the original form to:

TexPool Participant Services
1001 Texas Avenue, Suite 1400
Houston, TX 77002

ORIGINAL SIGNATURE AND DOCUMENT REQUIRED TEX-BANK 20F 2
TexPool Participant Services Managed and =
1001 Texas Avenue, Suite 1400 « Houston, TX 77002 Serviced by FEdEI‘ﬂtEd«;

Phone: 1-866-TEXPOOL (839-7665) « Fax: 1-866-839-3291 « www.texpool.com G45340.12 (8/15)



Resolution Authorizing Participation
in the TexPool Investment Pools and
Designating Authorized Representatives

AN INVESTMENT SERVICE FOR PUBLIC FUNDS

wWHEREAs, COPUS Christi Regional Transportation Authority

(“Participant”) is a local government or state agency of the State of Texas and is empowered to delegate to the public funds investment pools the
authority to invest funds and to act as custodian of investments purchased with local investment funds; and

WHEREAS, it is in the best interest of the Participant to invest local funds in investments that provide for the preservation and safety of principal,
liquidity, and yield consistent with the Public Funds Investment Act; and

WHEREAS, the Texas Local Government Investment Pools (“TexPool/TexPool Prime”), public funds investment pools, were created on behalf of
entities whose investment objectives in order of priority are preservation and safety of principal, liquidity, and yield consistent with the Public Funds
Investment Act.

NOW THEREFORE, be it resolved as follows:

A. That Participant shall enter into a Participation Agreement to establish an account in its name in TexPool/TexPool Prime, for the purpose of
transmitting local funds for investment in TexPool/TexPool Prime.

B. That the individuals, whose signatures appear in this Resolution, are authorized representatives of the Participant and are each hereby
authorized to transmit funds for investment in TexPool/TexPool Prime and are each further authorized to withdraw funds from time to time,
to issue letters of instruction, and to take all other acticns deemed necessary or appropriate for the investment of local funds.

Authorized Representatives of the Participant

These individuals will be issued P.I.N. numbers to transact business via telephone with a Participant Service Representative.

1.l A B R R
Signature Telephone Number
lJorge Cruz-Aedo | 13]6]1]8]8|3]1]9]8]3]|
Printed Name Fax Number
|Chief Executive Officer | jcruz-aedo@ccrta.org
Title Email

2.| | |SEA1) @ O] 8] Rf4) 89
Signature Telephone Number
|Robert M. Saldafia | 13]6] 1]8]8]3] 1]9| 8] 3
Printed Name Fax Number
|Managing Director of Administration | [rsaldana@ccrta.org
Title Email

3.l Iy e R G
Signature Telephone Number

IMarie Sandra Roddel

[3|6]1]8[8]3]1]9]8]3]

Printed Name

|Director of Finance

Fax Number

|mroddel@ccrta.org

Title

n

Signature

|Daniel Benavidez

Email

3|6|1|9|0I3|3 5 4|6l

Telephone Number

[B1€L1)&| 8 8] 1) 9 8| 8

Printed Name

|Comptroller

Fax Number

|dbenavidez@ccrta.org

Title

Email

FORM CONTINUES ON NEXT PAGE

10F 2



5.| O I

Signature Telephone Number

l (I O
Printed Name Fax Number

I | |

Title Email

List the name of the Authorized Representative provided above that will have primary responsibility for performing transactions and receiving confirma-
tions and monthly statements under the Participation Agreement.

|IVIarie Sandra Roddel

Printed Name

In addition and at the option of the Participant, one additional authorized representative can be designated to perform inquiry only of selected informa-

tion. This limited representative cannot make deposits or withdrawals. If the Participant desires to designate a representative with inquiry rights only,
complete the following information.

L[AngelicaAcevedo | [3]6]1]9]0]3]3|4]|8]0]
Printed Name Telephone Number
IAccountant | |3]6|1|8|8|3|1|9|8|3]
Title Fax Number

C. That this resolution and its authorization shall continue in full force and effect until amended or revoked by the Participant, and until
TexPool/TexPool Prime receives a copy of any such amendment or revocation.

This resolution is hereby introduced and adopted by the Participant at its regular/special meeting held on the 23 _Day of August , 20 17 :

Document is to be signed by your Board President, Mayor or County Judge and attested by your Board Secretary,
City Secretary or County Clerk.

|Corpus Christi Regional Transportation Authority |

Name of Participant

SIGNED:

I |

Signature

[Curtis Rock 1

Printed Name

|Chair, CCRTA Board of Directors |

Title

ATTEST:

Signature

[Eddie Martinez [

Printed Name

[Secretary, CCRTA Board of Directors |

Title
ORIGINAL SIGNATURE AND DOCUMENT REQUIRED TEX-BANK 20F2
TexPool Participant Services Managed and =
1001 Texas Avenue, Suite 1400 + Houston, TX 77002 Serviced by Federated ®

Phone: 1-866-TEXPOOL (839-7665) » Fax: 1-866-839-3291 » www.texpool.com (G4534020(9/15)



CORPUS CHRISTI REGIONAL
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

Administration & Finance Committee Memo September 27, 2017
Subject: 2016 RTA Employees Defined Benefit Plan & Trust Audited Financial Statements

Background

The Fiscal 2016 RTA Employees Defined Benefit Plan & Trust audited financial statements are
being presented to the Administration & Finance Committee. The audit was conducted by the
independent firm of Collier, Johnson, & Woods, P.C. The firm provided a clean opinion that the
financial statements fairly present the fiduciary net position of RTA Employees Defined Benefit
Plan & Trust as of December 31, 2016 and 2015.

Identified Need

In accordance with the Texas Government Codes Chapter 802, sections 103 and 104, it is
required that CCRTA file an annual financial report, including the financial statements and
schedules as examined in an annual audit performed by a certified public accountant within 210
days after the last day of the plan’s fiscal year.

Financial Impact

The audit was conducted by the accounting firm of Collier, Johnson & Woods, P.C. at the
agreed upon rate of $12,000.

Recommendation

For information only

Respectfully Submitted,

Submitted by: Marie Sandra Roddel
Director of Finance

Reviewed by: ) J? i

Robert 'IVI. Saldana
Managing,Director of Administration

4 /
4 s
£ 7

Final Approval by:

16



ATTACHMENT

RTA EMPLOYEES DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN
AND TRUST

AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2016



INDEX

PAGE

Independent AUditor's REPOIT ...cooii ittt sttt et sne s e s e e e e 1-2
Matagenment’s Discussionsand ANAlYSIS semumonsmars s s s s s s S L 3-5
Statement of Fiduciary Net Position ..o TR —— 6
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position ........... L 7
Notes to Financial StatementS.......ccui ittt ettt 8-22
Required Supplementary Information:

Schedule of Changes in the Net Pension Liability and Related Ratios..........ccccccovvveveinecrccreeneee, 23

Schedule of Contributions ............... S A D R O TS R ST S 24



555N.C hua Suite 1000
COLLIER, JOHNSON & WOODS, PC.  cops et rouss 7801 080
361-884-9347 + Fax 361-884-9422

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS Bt ot

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

July 26, 2017

RTA Employees Defined Benefit Plan and Trust
Corpus Christi, Texas

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of RTA Employees Defined Benefit Plan
and Trust (Plan), which comprise the statements of fiduciary net position as of December 31, 2016 and
2015, and the related statements of changes in fiduciary net position for the years then ended and the
related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements
in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles; this includes the design,
implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatements of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the
Plan’s preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Plan’s internal control.  Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinion.

RTA Employees Defined Benefit Plan and Trust 1



Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the fiduciary net position of RTA Employees Defined Benefit Plan and Trust as of December 31, 2016
and 2015, and the changes in fiduciary net position for the years then ended in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Emphasis of Matter- Adoption of Accounting Standard

As discussed in Note 2 to the financial statements, in 2016, the Plan adopted new accounting
guidance Accounting Standards Update (ASU) 2015-12. Qur report is not modified with respect to this
matter.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
Management’s Discussion and Analysis, the Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability and Related
Ratios, the Schedule of Contributions, and the Schedule of Investment Returns on pages 3-5 and pages
24-26 are presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part
of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an
appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to
the required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the
information and comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our
inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic
financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because
the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.

(ohii Ptnans § Werele

RTA Employees Defined Benefit Plan and Trust 2



RTA EMPLOYEES DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN AND TRUST

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

December 31. 2016
(Unaudited)

This section of the financial statements of the RTA Employees Defined Benefit Plan and Trust
offers a narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities for the years ended December 31, 2016
and 2015. The reader of this statement should take time to read and evaluate all sections of this report,
including the notes and other supplementary information that is provided in addition to the MD&A.

Financial Highlights and Analysis

e Net position restricted for pensions is available for payment of retirement benefits and other
qualified distributions to the Plan’s participants. Net position restricted for pensions increased by
$2.37 million or 7.85% in 2016 and decreased by $952 thousand or 3.05% in 2015. Changes
primarily correlate with investment income (loss) and employer contributions compared to
benefits paid.

¢ LEmployer contributions increased $519 thousand or 52.64% in 2016, compared to a 16.4%
decrease in 2015. The 2016 increase is due to an increase in actuarial determined contributions.

¢ The amount of benefits paid to retired members and beneficiaries increased by $68,581 or 4.59%
during 2016 compared to 19.62% increase in 2015. This is a primary result of an increasing
number of retirees.

e The Plan’s rate of return on investments for the year ended December 31, 2016 was 8.01% which
was more than the return of (1.42%) for the year ended December 31, 2015. The actuarial
assumed rate of return is 7.5%.

Overview of the Financial Statements

This discussion and analysis is intended to serve as an introduction to the Plan’s financial
statements. The financial statements are comprised of: (1) financial statements, (2) notes to the financial
statements, and (3) required supplementary information.

The Statement of Fiduciary Net Position reports the Plan’s assets and liabilities, with the
difference between the two reported as net position. This is a measure of financial position, which can
indicate financial condition improvement or deterioration from year to year.

The Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position presents information showing how the
Plan’s net position changed during the fiscal year. It reflects contributions by the employer and
investment income, along with deductions for retirement benefits, refunds, withdrawals, and
administrative expenses.

The Notes to the Financial Statements provide additional information that is essential to a full
p

understanding of the data provided in the financial statements. These notes should be read as an integral
part of the financial statements.

RTA Employees Defined Benefit Plan and Trust 3



RTA EMPLOYEES DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN AND TRUST

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

December 31, 2016
(Unaudited)

Required Supplementary Information (unaudited) includes management’s discussion and analysis
(MD&A) and the schedule of changes in net pension liability and related ratios, the schedule of
contributions, and the schedule of investment returns and is supplementary information required by U.S.
generally accepted accounting principles.

CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION

DECEMBER CHANGE
2016 2015 2014 2016-2015 2015-2014
Assets:
Investments at Fair Value 32,583,077 30,210,461 31,162,434 2,372,616 (951,973)
Total Plan Assests 32,583,077 30,210,461 31,162,434 2,372,616 (951,973)
Liabilities - - - - -- --
Net Position Restricted
for Pensions 32,583,077 30,210,461 31,162,434 2,372,616 (951,973)
YEAR ENDED DECEMBER CHANGE
2016 2015 2014 2016-2015 2015-2014
Additions:
Net Investment Income (Loss) 2,523,595 (348,950) 1,706,633 2,872,545 (2,055,583)
Employer Contributions 1,503,736 985,175 1,178,498 518,561 (193,323)
Total Additions 4,027,331 636,225 2,885,131 3,391,106 (2,248,906)
Deductions:
Benefits Paid to Participants 1,561,905 1,493,324 1,248,352 68,581 244,972
Administrative Expenses 92,810 94,874 91,465 (2,064) 3.409
Total Deductions 1,654,715 1,588,198 1,339,817 66,517 248,381
Net Increase {Decrease)
in Net Position 2,372,616 (951,973) 1,545,314 3,324,589 (2,497,287)

RTA Employees Defined Benefit Plan and Trust 4



RTA EMPLOYEES DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN AND TRUST

Management’s Discussion and Analysis

December 31, 2016
(Unaudited)

Request for Information

This financial report is designed to provide our patrons and other interested parties with a general
overview of the finances to demonstrate the Plan’s accountability for the funds it receives. Questions
concerning any of the information in this report ot requests for additional financial information should be
addressed to Corpus Christi Regional Transportation Authority, Finance Department, 602 N. Staples St.,
Corpus Christi, Texas 78401, (361) 883-2287. In addition, this Employees Defined Benefit Plan and Trust
Financial Report for 2016 will be posted on the Authority’s website: www.ccrta.org under the category
“Financial Transparency” — Pension Information.

RTA Employees Defined Benefit Plan and Trust 5



RTA EMPLOYEES DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN AND TRUST

STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

Assets:
Investments, at Fair Value (Note 3):
Money Market Funds
Mutual Funds
Collective Investments Funds
Total Investments, at Fair Value

Accrued Interest Receivable
Total Assets

Liabilities
NET POSITION RESTRICTED FOR PENSIONS

See Notes to Financial Statements.

DECEMBER 31,

2016 2015
993,499 615,256
7,528,614 6,361,950
24,060,235 23,233,161
32,582,348 30,210,367
729 94
32,583,077 30,210,461
32,583,077 30,210,461

RTA Employees Defined Benefit Plan and Trust 6



RTA EMPLOYEES DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN AND TRUST

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION

YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2016 2015
Additions:
Employer Contributions 1,503,736 985,175
Investment Income:
Net Appreciation (Depreciation) in
Fair Value of Investments 2,388,778 (462,739)
[nterest 51,083 45,518
Dividends 9,533 9,816
Mutual/Common Trust Fund Earnings 74,201 58,455
Net Investment Income (Loss) 2,523,595 (348,950)
Total Additions 4,027,331 636,225
Deductions:
Benefits Paid to Participants 1,561,905 1,493,324
Administrative Expenses 92,810 94,874
Total Deductions 1,654,715 1,588,198
Net Increase (Decrease) in Net Position 2,372,616 (951,973)
Net Position Beginning of Year 30,210,461 31,162,434
NET POSITION END OF YEAR 32,583,077 30,210,461

See Notes to Financial Statements.

RTA Employees Defined Benefit Plan and Trust 7



RTA EMPLOYEES DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN AND TRUST

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31. 2016

Note 1 -DESCRIPTION OF THE PLAN

The following brief description of the RTA Employees Defined Benefit Plan and Trust (Plan)
is provided for general information purposes only. Participants should refer to the Plan document for
a more complete description of the Plan’s provisions.

General

The RTA Employees Defined Benefit Plan and Trust (Plan) is a single-employer defined
benefit pension plan administered by the Corpus Christi Regional Transportation Authority
(Authority) and established upon the applicable sections of the Internal Revenue Code. The Authority
Board may periodically amend the Plan document. The current Plan provisions were established by a
Plan and Trust agreement adopted by the Board of Directors in July 1986, and amended in July 1994,
February 2002, November 2010, December 2011, and December 2012.

Benefits

Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of
the Plan. The Plan assets are maintained under a trust agreement with Wells Fargo Bank (Trustee).
The Trustee carries out an investment policy established by the Authority Board consistent with
purposes of the Plan and all applicable laws. Administration costs are paid by the Plan.

Any employee shall be eligible to participate in the Plan on the date of the commencement of
full-time employment or reemployment. For purposes of this section, a full-time employee shall be
defined as any employee who receives compensation from the employer on the basis of an average of
at least 40 hours of employment per week. Once an employee has become a participant, he will
continue to be a participant as long as he continues to be an employee without a break in service and
thereafter as long as he or his beneficiary retains any right to benefits under the Plan.

Plan participants are eligible for their pension benefit after terminating employment with
vested rights. Participants are eligible for normal retirement on his normal retirement date (first day of
the calendar month immediately following the date he attains age 62). A participant who has both
attained his 55™ birthday and has completed at least ten (10) years of service may retire at any time by
giving at least 120 days prior written notice to the employer, but at a benefit reduced by 5% for each
year preceding his normal retirement date. Participants should refer to the Plan Document for a more
complete deseription of the Plan reduction factors. Normal retirement benefits shall be an amount
equal to 2% of his final average compensation multiplied by his years of service (converted to a
monthly retirement benefit by dividing by twelve).

RTA Employees Defined Benefit Plan and Trust 8§



Note | -DESCRIPTION OF PLAN — (Continuation)
Vesting

Vesting begins at three years of service with full vesting at seven years. Employees who
retire on or after age 62 are entitled to an annual retirement benefit equal to 2% of average
compensation for the final three consecutive years of employment times their number of years of
service for the Authority. Reduced retirement benefits are available at age 55 with ten years of
service. In December 2012, the Plan was amended to allow those eligible for early retirement during a
specified window without incurring the nermal reduction in benefits. The Plan is not indexed for
inflation. As of January 1, 2016 there were 569 participants in the Plan as follows:

2016 2015
Retirees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 154 140
Terminated and entitled to, but not yet receiving benefits 169 175
Active employees 246 223
TOTAL PARTICIPANTS 569 538

Death Benefits

If the employment of a Participant is terminated by reason of his death prior to the
completion of three (3) years of service, no death benefits shall be payable under the Plan. If the
employment of a participant is terminated by reason of his death while in the employment of the
Authority after the completion of three (3) years of service or after having terminated with at least
three (3) years of service, then a death benefit shall be payable to the participant’s surviving spouse
equal to the “Pre-Retirement Survivor Annuity”, The “Pre-Retirement Survivor’s Annuity” means a
survivor annuity for the life of the deceased participant’s spouse which provides payments to the
surviving spouse that are equal to the amounts that would have been paid to the surviving spouse
(details provided in Plan Document).

[f the participant does not have a surviving spouse, no death benefit shall be payable.
Disability Retirement

Employees determined to be disabled under terms of the Authority’s long-term disability
program as of June 1, 1999 shall be entitled to benefits under this Plan to the extent the Plan
provisions in place on June 1, 1999 provided for such benefits.
Contributions

The Authority shall contribute to the fund from time to time amounts based upon the
recommendations of the Plan’s actuary, in order to tund the costs of the Plan on an acceptable basis.
All employer contributions when made to the fund and all property and funds of the fund, including
income from investments and from all other sources, shall be retained for the exclusive benefit of
participants and their beneficiaries, and shall be used to pay retirement income provided hereunder or

to pay expenses of administration of the Plan and the fund.

No contributions shall be required of or permitted by any participant under this Plan.

RTA Employees Defined Benefit Plan and Trust 9



Note | ~-DESCRIPTION OF PLAN — (Continuation)
Funding Policy

The employer shall establish a funding policy and method consistent with Plan objectives in
order that the long range and short range financial needs of the Plan may be determined and
communicated to the Board.

Note 2 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Presentation

The accompanying financial statements of the Plan have been prepared on the accrual basis
of accounting in accordance with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. The significant
accounting policies followed in the preparation of these financial statements are summarized below.
These policies conform to the accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America (GAAP) for local governmental units as prescribed in the statements issued by the
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) and other authoritative sources.

Investment Valuation and Income Recognition

The Plan’s investments are stated at market value, unless otherwise indicated. Fair value is
the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. See Note 3 for further information and related
disclosures regarding the Plan’s investments.

Purchases and sales of securities are recorded on a trade-date basis. Interest income is
recorded on the accrual basis. Dividends are recorded on the ex-dividend date. Net appreciation
(depreciation) in the fair value of investments includes realized gains or losses and unrealized
appreciation or depreciation on investments bought and sold as well as held during the year. Gains
and losses on the sale of investments in registered investment company funds are computed using the
weighted average cost method.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of these financial statements in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires the Plan Administrator to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported carrying value of assets, liabilities and changes therein,
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities, and the actuarial present value of accumulated plan
benefits at the date of the financial statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

RTA Employees Defined Benefit Plan and Trust 10



Note 2 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES —(Continuation)
Risk and Uncertainties

The Plan may invest in various types of investment securities. Investment securities, in
general, are exposed to various risks, such as interest rate, credit, and overall market volatility risks.
Due to the level of risk associated with certain investment securities, it is at least reasonably possible
that changes in the values of investment securities will occur in the near term and that such changes
could materially affect participants’ account balances and the amounts reported in the statement of
fiduciary net position.

Plan contributions are made and the actuarial present value of accumulated plan benefits are
reported based on certain assumptions pertaining to interest rates, inflation rates, and employee
demographics, all of which are subject to change. Due to uncertainties inherent in the estimations and
assumptions processes, it is at least reasonably possible that changes in these estimates and
assumptions in the near term would be material to the financial statements.

Payment of Benefits

Benefit payments are recognized as expenses when due and payable in accordance with the
terms of the Plan.

Administrative Expenses

The employer may pay all expenses incurred in the administration of the Plan, including
expenses and fees of the Trustee, but it shall not be obligated to do so; except that any such expenses
and fees not paid by the employer shall be paid from the Plan. All expenses not paid by the employer
and all other proper charges and disbursements of the Trustee, including taxes of any kind which may
be levied or assessed under existing or future laws upon or in respect to the Fund or the Trust created
hereby, shall be paid by the Trustee out of, and shall constitute a first charge upon, the Fund. In
addition, certain investment related expenses are included in the net appreciation of fair value of
investments presented in the accompanying Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position,

Adoption of New Accounting Standard

In July 2015, the FASB issued Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2015-12, Plan
Accounting: Defined Benefit Pension Plans (Topic 960). This ASU provides guidance on reporting
tor Fully Benefit Responsive Investment Contracts (FBRICs), plan investment disclosures and the
measurement date for practical expedients. The FASB issued this update to reduce complexity in
employee benefit plan accounting, which is consistent with its “Simplification Initiative”. The update
is effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2015. As required under the
standard, the Plan implemented this update retrospectively to December 31, 2015 during the year
ended December 31, 2016.

RTA Employees Defined Benefit Plan and Trust 11



Note 3 — DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

The investments of the Plan at fair value at December 31, 2016 are noted below:

Money Market Fund-
Wells Fargo Short Term Investment Fund F

Mutual Funds:
Domestic Equity:
Delaware US Growth Fund Instl Class
Fixed Income:
Metropolitan West Total Return Bond Fund Class |
International Equity:
Acadian Emerging Markets Portfolio Class Inst
Harbor International Fund Class Institutional
Oppenheimer Developing Markets Fund Class |
Commodity:
Alps/Corecommodity Mgmt Complete
Comm Strat Fund Cl |
Real Estate:
Vanguard REIT ETF
Total Mutual Funds

Collective Investment Funds:
Domestic Equity:
Wells Fargo Multi-Manager Small Cap CIT F
Wells Fargo Blackrock S&P Midcap Index CIT F
Wells Fargo Blackrock S&P 500 Index CIT F
Wells Fargo MFS Value CIT F
Wells Fargo T Rowe Price Instit Equity
Income Managed CIT F
Wells Fargo T Rowe Price Instit Large-Cap
Growth Managed CIT F
Fixed Income:
Wells Fargo Core Bond Fund
Wells Fargo Dodge & Cox Intermediate Bond CIT F
Wells Fargo Federated Total Return Bond CIT F
International Equity:
Wells Fargo Causeway International Value CIT F
Wells Fargo Lazard International Equity CIT F
Total Collective Investment Funds

TOTAL INVESTMENTS

2016 2015
993,499 615,256
969,331 914,771
2,622,584 2,450,950
485,221 588,737
1,332,890 1,207,560
494,596 -
819,490 580,350
804,502 619,582
7,528,614 6,361,950
2,902,284 2,969,328
3,225,085 2,969,475
2,579,771 3,309,196
969.401 896,265
970,377 899,504
965,422 908,941
4,261,698 3,373,427
2,948,463 2,443,439
2,620,686 2,445,626
1,306,068 1,511,774
1,310,980 1,506,186
24,060,235 23,233,161
32,582,348 30,210,367

RTA Employees Defined Benefit Plan and Trust 12



Note 3 — DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS — (Continuation)
Fair Value Measurements

FASB ASC 820, Fair Value Measurements and Disclosures, provides the framework for
measuring fair value. That framework provides a fair value hierarchy that prioritizes the inputs to
valuation techniques used to measure fair value. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted
quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1 measurement) and the lowest
priority to unobservable inputs (level 3 measurement).  The three levels of the fair value hierarchy
under FASB ASC 820 are described as follows:

Level 1 inputs to the valuation methodology is unadjusted quoted prices for identical assets
or liabilities in active markets that the Plan has the ability to access.

Level 2 inputs to the valuation methodology include: quoted prices for similar assets or
liabilities in active markets; quoted prices for identical or similar assets or liabilities in inactive
markets; inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the asset or liability; inputs that are
derived principally from, or corroborated by observable market data by correlation or other means. If
the asset or liability has a specified (contractual) term, the level 2 input must be observable for
substantially the full term of the asset or liability.

Level 3 inputs to the valuation methodology are inputs that are unobservable and significant
to the fair value measurement.

Valuation Methodology

The asset or liability’s fair value measurement level within the fair value hierarchy is based
on the lowest level of any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation
techniques used need to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable
inputs. Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair
value. There have been no changes in the methodologies used at December 31, 2016.

Level 1 Fair Value Measurements

The fair value of mutual funds is based on quoted net asset values of the shares held by the
Plan at the end of the year. Accounts are based on available quoted market prices.

Level 2 Fair Value Measurements

The fair value of certain units of Collective Investment Funds is based on significant other
observable inputs. Underlying investments include securities, government and agency obligations,
and fixed income securities. Securities traded on security exchanges are valued at closing market
prices on the valuation date. Securities traded in the over-the-counter market are valued at the last sale
on the valuation date, if any, otherwise at the last reported bid price. Government and agency
obligations are valued based upon the most recent bid quotation for identical or similar obligations.
Fixed income securities are valued based upon the most recent bid quotation obtained from major
market makers or security exchanges. The fair value of the collective trust fund is the respective net
asset values reported by the fund daily.

RTA Employees Defined Benefit Plan and Trust 13



Note 3 — DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS — (Continuation)

The preceding valuation methods described may produce a fair value calculation that may not
be indicative of net realizable value or reflective of future fair values. Furthermore, although the Plan
believes its valuation methods are appropriate and consistent with other market participants, the use
of different methodologies or assumptions to determine the fair value of certain financial instruments
could result in a different fair value measurement at the reporting date.

The following presents the Plan’s fair value measurements at December 31, 2016 and 2015
reported by level, within the fair value hierarchy and segregated by entity size or investment

objective.

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

QUOTED PRICES
IN ACTIVE SIGNIFICANT
MARKET FOR OTHER
IDENTICAL OBSERVABLE
FAIR ASSETS INPUTS
VALUE (LEVEL 1) (LEVEL 2)
December 31, 2016:
Money Market Fund 993,499 993,499 -
Mutual Funds 7,528,614 7,528,614 -
Common/Collective Trust Funds 24,060,235 -- 24,060,235
TOTAL 32,582,348 8,522,113 24,060,235
December 31, 2015:
Money Market Fund 615,256 615,256 g
Mutual Funds 6,361,930 6,361,950 5
Common/Collective Trust Funds 23,233,161 - 23,233,161
TOTAL 30,210,367 6,977,206 23,233,161

Investment Policy

The Board of Directors of the Authority has the ultimate responsibility for establishing,
terminating, medifying, and administering the Plan. It has delegated the responsibility for
administering and managing the Plan’s assets to the RTA Audit, Finance, Health and Pension
Subcommittee (Subcommittee). The Subcommittee has developed a Statement of Investment Policy
in order to establish investment objectives and guidelines for the management and monitoring of
investments utilized within the Plan.

This Investment Policy is intended to be a guide. If a conflict arises between the Plan trust
documents and the Investment Policy, the Plan trust documents will supersede all matters herein.

RTA Employees Defined Benefit Plan and Trust 14



Note 3 — DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS — (Continuation)

The primary investment objective is to earn a rate of return sufficient to match or exceed the
long-term growth of the Plan’s liabilities through a combination of income and capital appreciation,
in a manner consistent with the fiduciary standards of ERISA and with sound investment practices for
these funds. Accordingly, the investment manager is required to exercise a high degree of
professional care, skill, prudence and diligence in the management of the funds’ assets.

Assets are invested to minimize the chance of suffering market value losses. Assets are
diversified into different styles with a prudent number of individual issues within each style to
mitigate concentration risk. Investment performance is measured quarterly but it is not anticipated
that performance goals will be satisfied in every single quarter or year. It is, however, expected that
these totals be satisfied over a full market cycle. A full market cycle is considered to be three to five
years. In addition, the performance of the various asset categories utilized within the overall
investment array should be competitive on a long-term basis with their appropriate benchmarks based
on investment objective, investment style and market capitalization.

Asset Allocation

The Plan’s asset allocation policy as of December 31, 2016, adopted by the Subcommittee, is
as follows. There were no modifications to the investment policy during 2016.

TARGET % MAXIMUM % MINIMUM % BENCHMARK

Cash 2% 3% % Treasury Bill Equivalent
Equities 60% 70% 50% S&P 500
Fixed Income 38% 50% 27% Barclays Capital Aggregate

Rate of Return

The portfolio is expected to produce a compounded annual absolute return over a market
cycle of at least 7.5%. For the year ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, the annual dollar-weighted
rate of return for the Plan investments, was 8.01%, and (1.42%). The dollar-weighted rate of return
demonstrates that the present value of future cash flows plus the final market value of the investments
equal the current market price of the investment.

Interest Rate Risk
This is the risk that changes in the interest rates will negatively impact the fair value of an
investment. As market interest rates rise, the fair value of an investment held decreases. The Plan’s

current Investment Policy does not specifically address interest rate risk. The Plan does, however,
monitor exposure using the “Segmented Time Distribution” method.

RTA Employees Defined Benefit Plan and Trust 15



Note 3 — DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS — (Continuation)

The following is a list of the Plan’s fixed income investments and related maturity schedule
(in years) as of December 31, 2016 and 2015. The maturity schedule is based on the average maturity
of the fund as noted by the fund manager:

DECEMBER 31, 2016
LESS THAN 1-5 5-10 10+
INVESTMENT TYPE FAIR VALUE 1 YEAR YEARS YEARS YEARS
Collective Investment Funds
Fixed Income:
WF Core Bond Fund 4,261,698 127,851 1,960,381 1,704,679 468,787
WF Dodge & Cox
Intermediate Bond Fund 2,948,463 383,300 1,326,809 707,631 530,723
WF Federated Total Return
Bond Fund 2,620,686 26,207 524,137 1,126,895 943,447
Total Collect Inv Funds 9,830,847 537,358 3,811,327 3,539,205 1,942,957
Mutual Fund
Fixed Income:
Metropolitan West Total
Return Bond Fund Cl11 2,622,584 -- -- 2,622,584 -
TOTAL 12,453,431 537,358 3,811,327 6,161,789 1,942,957
DECEMBER 31, 2015
LESS THAN 1-5 5-10 10+
INVESTMENT TYPE FAIR VALUE 1 YEAR YEARS YEARS YEARS
Collective Investment FFunds
Fixed Income:
WF Core Bond Fund 3,373,427 101,203 1,652,979 1,248,168 371,077
WI Dodge & Cox
Intermediate Bond Fun 2,443,439 - 1,417,195 610,860 415,384
W Federated Total Return
Bond Fund 2,445,626 97,825 513,581 1,002,707 831,513
Total Collect Inv Funds 8,262,492 199,028 3,583,755 2,861,735 1,617,974
Mutual Fund
Fixed Income:
Metropolitan West Total
Return Bond Fund CI 1 2.450.950 -- -- 2.450,950 --
TOTAL 10,713,442 199,028 3,583.755 5.312,685 1,617,974

RTA Employees Defined Benefit Plan and Trust 16



Note 3 — DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS — (Continuation)
Custodial Credit Risk

Investment securities are exposed to custodial credit risk if the securities are uninsured, are
not registered in the name of the government, and are held by counterparty, or counterparty’s trust
department or agent but not in the government’s name. This is the risk that in the event of bank or
investment failure, the Plan’s deposits or investments may not be returned. The Plan’s investment
policy does not specifically address custodial credit risk; however, all of Defined Benefits® deposits
and investments are in the name of the Plan and Trust. as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Plan’s
deposits or investments exposed to custodial credit risk are minimal.

Concentration of Credit Risk

This is the risk of investing predominately in any one type of investment or entity. The Plan
recognizes over-concentration of assets by market sector or maturity as a risk to the portfolio. The
Plan’s adopted investment policy established diversification as a major objective of the investment
program and sets diversification limits for all authorized investment types which are monitored on a
monthly basis. Per the policy, no equity holding may exceed 5% of the outstanding voting shares of
the issuing corporation. Likewise, regarding fixed income investments, not more than 5% of the
market value of the total portfolio may be invested in the debt securities of any one company. As of
December 31, 2016 and 2015 there were no exceptions to these policy limits.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that an issuer or other counterparty to an investment will not fulfill its
obligations to the Plan. The Plan’s investment policy addresses general provisions relating to
common stocks where limits are established on percentage of investing in a particular stock. The
policy also stresses high quality and reasonable diversification of fixed income investments with
portfolio holdings concentrated in securities rated A or better, limiting 10% of holdings invested in
issues rated below BBB, only with management approval.

RTA Employees Defined Benefit Plan and Trust 17



Note 3 — DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS — (Continuation)

The Plan’s fixed income investments are rated based on the average quality of the fixed
income investments as noted below:

DECEMBER, 31, 2016

WF Dodge & WF Federated WF Core Metropolitan

Cox Intermed Total Return Bond Fund West Total

Bond CIT F Bond CIT F CITF Return Bond 1 Total
Cash 58,969 26,207 -- -- 85,176
U.S. Treasury 589,693 104,827 1,321,126 -- 2,015,646
U.S. Agency 943,507 -- -- -- 943,507
AAA - 1,205,515 1,875,148 1,767,621 4,848,284
AA 29,485 52,414 127,851 133,227 342,977
A 88,454 235,862 340,936 339,625 1,004,877
BBB 972,993 681,379 596,637 247,572 2,498,581
BB and Below 265,362 314,482 -- 134,539 714,383

TOTAL 2,948,463 2,620,686 4,261,698 2,622,584 12,453,431

DECEMBER 31. 2015

WF Dodge & WF Federated WF Core Metropolitan

Cox Intermed Total Return Bond Fund West Total

Bond CIT F Bond CIT F CITF Return Bond 1 Total
Cash 73,303 48,912 -- -- 122,215
U.S. Treasury 268,779 146,738 1,045,762 - 1,461,279
U.S. Agency 806,335 -- -- -- 806,335
AAA 73,303 929,338 1,619,245 1,720,812 4,342,698
AA 24,434 48,913 67,469 102,450 243,266
A 122,172 317,931 168,671 262,252 871,026
BBB 830,769 660,319 472,280 228,428 2,191,796
BB and Below 244,344 293,475 -- 137,008 674,827

TOTAL 2,443,439 2,445,626 3,373,427 2,450,950 10,713,442
RTA Employees Defined Benefit Plan and Trust 18



Note 3 — DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS — (Continuation)

Foreign (International) Currency Risk

This is the risk that changes in exchange rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment or deposit. The Plan’s investment policy allows for fixed income investments which

may be international in addition to International Equity funds. The country/regional allocation of
the fund is provided below based on prospectus allocations:

DECEMBER 31, 2016

Australia
America Europe Asia & Oceana East Other
Fund Region Region Region Region Region Region Region Total

Acadian Emerging Markets

Portfolio Class Inst 61,429 25232 349,407 -- 49,153 - 485221
Harbor International Fund

Class Institutional 233,389 945419 154,082 - - - 1,332,890
Wells Fargo Causeway

International Value CIT F 28,211 896,616 368,442 12,799 - - 1,306,068
Wells Fargo Lazard

International Equity CIT F 161,906 825917 271,242 19,665 32,250 - 1,310,980

TOTAL 484,935 2,693,184 1,143,173 32,464 81,403 -- 4,435,159
DECEMBER 31, 2015
Australia
America Europe Asia & Oceana East Other
Fund Region Region Region Region Region Region Region Total

Acadian Emerging Markets

Portfolio Class Inst 83,130 24,020 426,246 -- 55,341 -- 588,737
Harbor International Fund

Class Institutional 167,972 901,443 138,145 - -- - 1,207,560
Wells Fargo Causeway

International Value CIT F 48,528 1,042 519 409,086 11,641 - - 1,511,774
Wells Fargo Lazard

International Equity CIT F 50,758 951,157 339,043 38,408 55,126 71,694 1,506,186

TOTAL 350,388 2,919,139 1,312,520 50,049 110,467 71,694 4,814,257

RTA Employees Defined Benefit Plan and Trust

19



Note 4 — NET PENSION LIABILITY

The Net Pension Liability is measured as the Total Pension Liability, less the amount of
the Plan’s Fiduciary Net Position. In actuarial terms, this will be the accrued liability less the
market value of assets. The components of the Plan’s Net Pension Liability as of December 31,
2016 and 2015 are as follows:

2016 2015
Total Pension Liability 34,966,314 33,530,870
Plan Fiduciary Net Position 32,583,077 30,210,461
NET PENSION LIABILITY 2,383,237 3,320,409

The Schedule of Net Pension Liability presents multi-year trend information beginning
with 2015 to illustrate changes in the Plan fiduciary net position over time. In addition to the
above, this information is presented in the required supplementary information.

Actuarial assumptions

The total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of December 31,
2016 and 2015, using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the

measurement.

Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal
Inflation --

Salary Increases 3.5%

Mortality RP 2000 Mortality Table
Ad Hoc Post-Employment Benefits Not applicable

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.5%. Pursuant to
Paragraph 43 of GASB No. 67, an alternative analysis was performed to compare the Plan’s net
fiduciary position to projected benefit payments.

1. The Normal Cost represents the annual cost of benefit payments arising from future
service increases for active employees.

2. The Unfunded Actuarial Accrued Liability represents the accumulated deficiency of
the total cost of benefit payments which have already been earned over the current
assets held by the Plan’s trust.

3. The Authority’s contribution policy is to make an annual payment equal to the
Normal Cost plus the amortization payment of the Unfunded Actuarial Accrued
Liability. The amortization payment is calculated as a level dollar amount over a
period of 15 years from January 1, 2009.

RTA Employees Defined Benefit Plan and Trust 20



Note 4 — NET PENSION LIABILITY — (Continuation)

4. A review of actual contributions over the past five years shows that the Authority has
made sufficient contributions to meet its funding policy.

On the basis of the above, the projected cash flows will be sufficient to provide the
benefit payments to the Plan participants. Thus, the Discount Rate is equal to the long-term
expected rate of return of 7.5%.

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the Net Pension Liability of the Plan, calculated using the
discount rate of 7.5%, as well as what the Plan's Net Pension Liability would be if it were
calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower (6.5%) or l-percentage point
higher (8.5%) than the current rate:

1% Decrease Current Single Rate 1% Increase
to 6.5% Assumption of 7.5% to 8.5%
2016 6,487,148 2,383,237 (1,072,544
2015 7,338,602 3,320,409 (57,330)

Note 5 — PLAN TERMINATION

Although it has not expressed any intention to do so, the Authority expressly reserves the
right under the Plan to terminate or partially terminate the Plan and its contributions thereunder at
any time subject to the provisions set forth in Section 7 of the Plan and by giving written notice of
such termination or discontinuation of its contribution to the Trustee. In the event the Plan
terminates, or partially terminates, the present value of the benefits shall be determined as of the
Plan termination date and the assets of the Trust Fund shall be allocated to the extent they shall be
sufficient, after providing for expenses and administration, in the following order:

1. First

a. To benefits which are being paid as of three years prior to the date of
termination of the Plan, with the amount to be allocated to such benefit,
based on the provisions of the Plan in effect during the five-year period
immediately preceding the date of termination under which such benefit
would be least.

b. To benefits which would have been paid as of three years prior to the date of
termination (i) if the Participant had retired prior to the three-year period and
(ii) if his benefits had commenced (in the normal form of annuity under the
Plan) as of the beginning of such three-year period, with the amount to be
allocated to each such benefit determined under the provisions of the Plan in
effect during the five-year period preceding the date of termination under
which the benefit would be the least.

RTA Employees Defined Benefit Plan and Trust = 21



Note 5 — PLAN TERMINATION (Continuation)
2. Second, to all other vested Accrued Benefits as determined under Section 3.05.
3. Third, to all other Accrued Benefits attributable to non-vested participants,

For purposes of 1.b.i above, the lowest benefit in pay status during a three-year period
shall be considered the benefit in pay status for such period.

If the assets available for allocation to any class specified above are insufficient to satisfy
in full the benefits of all individuals within that class, the assets shall be allocated pro-rata among
such individuals on the basis of present value (as of the termination date) of their respective
benefits.

Note 6 — TAX STATUS
On April 27, 2017, the Internal Revenue Service (IRS) issued a favorable determination

letter stating that the Plan was in compliance with Section 1.401-1(b)(3) of the Code of Federal
Regulations.

RTA Employees Defined Benefit Plan and Trust = 22



RTA EMPLOYEES DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN AND TRUST

Required Supplementary Information

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABILITY
AND RELATED RATIOS

2016 2015
Fiscal Year Ended December 31:
Total Pension Liability:
Service Cost 941,470 876,806
Interest 2,521,413 2,396,547
Changes of Benefit Terms - 115,478
Differences Between Expected and Actual Experience (465,534) (260,046)
Benefit Payments, Included Refunds or Member Contributions (1,561,905) (1,493,324)
Net Change in total Pension Liability 1,435,444 1,635,461
Total Pension Liability - Beginning 33,530,870 31,895,409
TOTAL PENSION LIABILITY - ENDING (a) 34,966,314 33,530,870
Plan Fiduciary Net Position:
Contributions - Employer 1,503,736 985,175
Net Investment Income (Loss) 2,523:595 (348,950)
Benefit Payments, Including Refunds of Member Contributions (1,561,905} (1,493,324)
Administrative Expense (92,810) (94,874)
Net Change in Plan Fiduciary Net Position 2,372,616 (951,973)
Plan Fiduciary Net Position - Beginning 30,210,461 31,162,434
PLAN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION - ENDING (b) 32,583,077 30,210,461
NET PENSION LIABILITY - ENDING (a) - (b) 2,383,237 3,320,409
Plan Fiduciary Net Position as a Percentage of Total Pension Liability 93.18% 90.10%
Covered Employee Payroll $ 9178411 $  8.818232
Net Pension Liability as a Percentage of Covered Employee Payroll 25.97% 37.65%

Notes to Schedule
1. No Significant Iactors Noted to Disclose
2. No Signilicant Methods or Assumptions to Disclose.

3. Schedule Will be Built Out to 10 Years.

See accompanying independent auditors' report.

RTA Employees Defined Benefit Plan and Trust 23



b7 ISNIL pue Ue[J 1Iaudg paule(q sedkodwyg vy

Y%b'8

%06

suonnquuos Jo Ieak aanoadsal oy 1o 1 Azenuef jo se pale[na[ea Ak $2jel UCHNQLIU0D PAUILLOp A[[ELENaY

aIqE, AN[EHOW 000T o
79 99e Je 21d1 01 pawnsse 21om sjuedidned |y

%0S 'L

%08°¢

IMEA 1B
SIESA §

6007 *1 AlBNUE[ WOIJ STBIA C] JIA0 INOWE IR[|OP [AD]-PISOD
[eunoN 28y Anuy

‘wodas szonpne yuopuadopur FutAuedwodae ag

sjEY] AN[EMON

25y uowainay

WInay JO 9jey] JUDUNSIAU]
S95B2IOU] Are[eS

2)ey] UonEpU]

POYIDJA] UOHEN[EA 1055V

POLI | UOTBZIIOWY SUrtIBway|
POYIAJA UOLEZIMOWY

POUIIA] 180 [BLIENIDY

$O1RY UONNQLIUO.) AUILLIDIAC] 01 Pas() suondwnssy pue spoyI

%07 %191 %01 %9°S1 %l'LL %T 91 %T 11 %t 91
196'8£€°9 P99 P6E"0 1F0'FE9'9 965°9¥T'L OZI'ELO'L 9z8°1TTL SYEPLY'L TLI'WLT'L TET'YIE'S 11F8LIG
- - = = (9¥SLLT) = (96L°162) (186'Z8%) (oLv'1) (ZE6'vE)
189°62¢ Or1'9LS 118°ss€E'l £2r'89l’l $8TH90°1 169°€Z1°1 0£€°08T'1 S6V8LITL SLI'S86 9ELTE0S
189°6TS oF19LS [18'ss¢'l €T'R91°1 TrL'988 1695211 7ES'886 L1§°669 969°€86 FO8'89F 1
LOOT 8007 600T 010z 1102 TIT €102 ¥10T S10T 910z
SUVAA TVISIA NAL LSV

SNOLLIERLINOD A0 A INAALIIS

uoneuLtoyu] Arejudwdpddng paambayy

LSNIL ANV NV LLTANTY d

LATA STTAOTIINY VLY

21B(] UONEN[EA
SMpayds 01 SO10N

11o1ke g 20Aotdwz]
-PIIDA0L) JO ISRIUIIIIJ B SB SUOHNQLIUCD)

[101KeJ 0aK01dws] paroao)

(SSHOXH)
ADNHIDLIAA NOLLOHRLLNOD

uoNNQUIUOY) PAUILLINNAC]
A[[eLIENIOY DU} 01 UOHB[Y Ul UoNNqLIuo))
SUOHIGLIIUG,) POUILLIAACT A[[RLIENDY



RTA EMPLOYEES DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN AND TRUST

Required Supplementary Information

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENT RETURNS

DECEMBER 31,
2016 2015
Annual Money-Weighted Rate of Return, Net of Investment Expense 8.01% -1.42%

Note - Schedule Will be Built Out to 10 Years.

See accompanying independent auditors' report.

RTA Employees Defined Benefit Plan and Trust = 25



CORPUS CHRISTI REGIONAL
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

Administration & Finance Committee Memo September 27, 2017
Subject: Investment Report for the 2™ Quarter Ended June 30, 2017

Background

As of June 30, 2017 the Authority’s combined investment portfolio had a book value of
$21,774,312 and a market value of $21,772,944. The portion attributed to the bonds
was $6,290 for book and market value since all funds were invested in a money market
account, with the balance of $21,768,022 book value and $21,766,654 market value,
being CCRTA funds. Investments held as of June 30, 2017 had a weighted average
yield of 0.241% and a weighted average maturity of 28 days.

Net investment income on the portfolio for the second quarter of 2017 was $13,400.

The investment return for the quarter was .241% versus the benchmark yield of 1.030%
for a six month treasury.

The portfolio consists of a diversified list of investments with 8.27% in T-Notes, 82.45%
in Bank investments, and 9.28% in Money Market funds.

The full investment report is included as a separate attachment.

Identified Need

In accordance with Texas State Government Code Chapter 2256, also known as the
Public Funds Investment Act, not less than quarterly, the investment officer shall
prepare and submit to the governing body of the entity a written report of investment
transactions for all funds covered by this chapter for the preceding reporting period.

Financial Impact
None at this time

Recommendation
For information only

17



Respectfully Submitted,

Submitted by: Marie Sandra Roddel
Director of Finance

Reviewed by: / As
Robert M. Saldaria

Final Approval by:

Chief Executive Officer

18



S3ILVIDOSSY ® NOSY3ILLIVd

LTI0T ‘0€ dunf Jo sy

110day] judunsaAu] Af13ren()

ALIHOHLINVY NOILVIHOdSNVYHL
TVNOI93d 11S1dHO SNd4d030



sopAjeuy JoARH/ SISAIBUY DILLOUCST JO NEaUNg 90UINOS
| 90T | SMWOZ 4 MPT g EHOT ) THOZT 4 (biDE ) DMOE

obeloAR Dy =
%HVYVS JaD ==

-t

=] 2

‘ulewsal

sa8uaj|eyd ‘aoed [BWIOU 40U B 03U S3|113S SN AYI S "S4eD ylesy pue s3nd
xe} ul sadueyd /T 404 SUOI1L1DRAXS JOMO| YIIM UIAD SIJJBL 32015 3yl pasinds
24n121d JuswAo|dwa ||n} e 0} paydiew aJnssatd Fudid mo| pue UoIe|juI MO

“AJ3UNOD DY SSOJIE ISNQOJ 2U0W UINS

2J5M S3INIINILS |BIIUIPISRI-UON "%/ €T AYleay e 9504 Sulp|ing Awoy ‘Ing ‘||3} sa|es
Suipuad pue Ja8eaw 2JaM S3]es woy Sunsixa ay3 ‘seaud Suisealdoul pue sauloy
3|qe[IeAe JO AJ0JUBAUL JBMO| B UO pawe|g "uoseas SulAng ayl olul Sulos syluow

€ 01 UMOP §1 AJOJURAUL WOy SUlIsIXa 3y "SHNS3J Paxiw pey 40123s uisnoy ay

sonAjeuy JOARKHY SISAIRUY DILIOUCOD JO NBIUNG (83JNoeS
.@roN .m_.nvN L ¥L0Z €ELOZ ZL0Z i LLOZ OLDZ 600 VO0Z 4L00Z H
PR i i il

A T | Piall Tl T ol Tl | |

- oz

il %0'T SpPoy —-=
“%AOA 3Dd 240D
%ACA IO —

"SMO| JeaA-11|nW wody AIBA0J3S MO|S B 8NUIIUOD

s2o1d 10 se 3uljjup ||eMm |10 pue sed Suisu 03 syueyl (%1'6) Suidwnl quswdinbs

uo Sulpuads yim ‘panosduwl JUIWISIAUL SSAUISN] IDABMOH 'S1E0D AARSY SE [|]IM

se Suileay 40} PI3U Y} PISEIIIIP JAYIEIM ISIUIM P|ILU PUB HTOTZ SUIS ISOW 3y} |[34
Suipuads JuswuIaA0s Jo suahe| [y “SYSIY JeaA-13nw le 3DUIPIUOD JIWNSUOD pue
juawAo|dwa [jny JE3U B JUNO3JE OJUI 33E] 10U SI0P Jaquinu 18yl Ing %/ 0 I& siedh
2941 Ul AWIOUOI3 J533E3M DY] PIMOYS J311eND 35414 404 UOISIADL [BU 5,d0D YL

‘04G7 T 01 PIsied aJam saled 1Y3Iulano ay) pue

jutoddesip 10u 03 Wood A0S 3y Suiaid Apysis asod (4ojealpul uoijejul Atewnd
$,p34 3y) 304 3403 Inq pa4 3y Aq PaP33U %7 Y3 UeY] 3O0[IN0 UCIEJUL JBMO)

e 03 pajuiod Yluow SIY} |dd PUB [dD "UOIE|jUl U a5UIY ||B SBAOW P34 pue 1)JelN

‘8uiguns s1 SulIN1DBNUEBL PUB HTOZ 2JUIS 15ayS1y Y3 248 $H00[3IN0
INSI 3YL "S9|B25 Ay} @auejeq pad|ay ‘S91I0IUBAUI PUE SISPJO Ul 3yids a8.ie| e Buisnen
ssafeuew Suiseyaind Ing ‘Apyss 4go paJamo| os|e Sulpuads Jawnsuod Jalos 3y|

¢89Jaw auljuo pue Jejiow/soug se s3ueyd Jofew e JO ISPIW Byl Ul am 3y |1eld

J10J [PWsIp usaq sey Jalenb 3joym 3y “Awouods 3yl JO £/7 dn 3w sISWNSUO)
“o57 152d SUIMOIS Bl JN2IYIP B 2ARY [|IM ALIOUOID UBAIIP JBWNSUOD SIY] J3WNsU0d
24l INOYNM SidJew juswAoldwa 1sapow uo paseq sdeylad Sulpuads

J3Y pa|lennd Sey JAWNSU0I 3YL "YIMO.S 1SNqOJ 10U AJulB}IB ING PI|OS MOYS 95343
10 4109 “%7 't AJUO 38 AQA YHM %T°0 343w e dn sem Juipuads "Alenuer wody umop
SIY2IYM 95°E 03 9184 AQA Y3 Suniel %0 Aj3ysis Ajuo asod swodu| ‘suonedadxs
Mo|3q 3nq Yruow ay3 Suunp dn auam Suipuads |euosiad pue awodul |euosiad ylog

‘Awouods

138U0U1S B UO JOO[IN0 5,pa4 3Y3 03 A3Y SI YdIym ‘J9MO| SUOIIelDadXa uolejjul

3003 M YHM pue 3pi|s 03 panuiiuod saaid [I0 "S12JBW 3UY3 Ul UIBIUOD 3sned 0} uesaq
Suimo|s 1ey} ‘Jaienb puodss 343 JO puS 3yl 01 BUIWOYD "UOIENYIS BY] S535SE 0} 30BQ
padda)s sJaWnsuod pue Mojs 01 Paliels AWouods ayy Jepenb isiiy Suoas e Jayy

'y3iy Buipis uiede

30U0 s1313ng “Janenb puosas ayy ul Alljea) Ylim Ysnig e pey sey siuswaaosdw
2jelpawwi Jo} wsiwndo Janenb 1saiy 8y euoydna DT 2y} ueyl Jamojs

1nq ‘2A13150d 3g 03 SINUIZUOD SMBU JBY] PUB SM3U DILUOUOI2 JO SISE] 34} UO UOIDRJIP
SuiSueyd aJe syueq [BJIUDD SIUSAD [e2131]0d-028 SE [|am SB SMAU DILOU0I3 AQ UIALP
2J9M 5133JEW |BGO|S 3SOW Ul SUO 3|1B|OA B SEM YIUOW SIY| "S133JBW 38U} 104 5308
awes ay] "yieaiq e Y21ed 01 MO|s aMm Julod SLWOS 1e ‘Buljeualpe JO sunds [|8 yim sy

puZ UL A13Yy5HS smo)s Awouod3



"3oue[Eeq B Spulj ASUOW S JuII3P $338J W11 BUO| Ing ‘SaA0W
SuIsea uo asi 334 W) LIOYS Se 3AIND BulualIej) € JO 8q [|Im Jed) Sululewsl sy

-AUIOU023 3Yy) 550408 Juawaroidwi Apeals pue mojs e 03 Julod yaiym
‘S|RIUBWEPUNS UO SN0} }x4eW Byl 995 03 Sulualeay st 1 suondnisip Jolew
959U YIM UBA3 933 213 ‘maydau siy Suirsno Suly Ipnes ay) ‘sjunel uesuoy
YION ‘suondnisip Je1e(Q ‘SIA0W WL0JRL JBA0 S1Hjod Bulsooyd ssaUFU0D) ‘Buue
Auowilsal ABWo?) “SU0III3[D MM Y} 2J043q 3YSi SISUI0LIBY (YIUOW SIY} uoijuIW
01 SNOJALUNU 00 1SOW|E U33g aA.Y S}axJew ay3 Suljlol sIUaA2 |ed1l|od-099

‘Buinosdwi pue

SuImoJS Sue SAWOUOID JBYY SMBU UO 3Suodsal Ul 511 S33ed pUE |0JU0D Japun
yoeq Asuow ||nd syueq |eJjua2 se Isnipe 01 SAeY |[IM S1JBW 3L "SISpEJl puoq
10y apey s1youd se winijue) Jadwa) e YuM 1083l J3ASMOY Aew S13xIBW puoq By

“Ajjeuty — Buysiuiwip st Asuow ss00| AJeUIpIOBIIXD 10} Pa3U AY|

‘Suiuaiysn 03 Suisea wouy uoissnasip ay) SuiSueyd ‘sieak
0M] Ul B} 15414 9y} 404 JBDA Iy} aAaisod pauiny ueder Ul UOKE|JUI 310D

‘pu@ Suo| ay3 ul Ajjenadss Jaysiy
sajes uno Sedp Aew yoiym ‘sajed 1s3y1y ayy se uoiyisod §n 3yl 38u|jeyo pue
dn sa1eJ uS1213A0S JaY10 Sulq M Buisea woJj Aeme aa0w |eqoj8 3y, ‘sAow

423 Ul N300 [[IM SUOIIIBAL JB|IUIS "PRJBOS JIUOO| Y} pue SJeak 7 ulawn
1511) 9Y3 104 9%T 13A0 JUSM JBIA 7 5 BpRUED "|B} DY UO ISN[ "S3SEIJIUl 3led je
Sunuiy aJe sjUBq Yy1og suol §,1IySelg paoyos epeus) pue puejSul jo jueg 3yl

'2q0|3 ay3 punoue

Suiwiy pue puey auly e saanbas mo| sajes dady 01 193p JO saseyaind snouloua
ay3 Bunjey 4o Buimols 1nq ‘dais suo §1 sa1ed Buisiey  "sa1eJ BuISIR 1541 INOYUM
saseyaund yoeq 2[e3s PIN02 73 LTOZ 4O pud 3yl Ag 1g3p 0 y2eq-Ang Jiayy

uo 32eq ||nd B 18 JUIY OS[B PIP SUO] SNOIINED JBAD SIH "2U0Z0INT 3y} Ul Uofie|jal
uo UOISIIAP SIy paseq 1yJesq “poddns g3 yoeq (|0 03 SsBUIPEdS € JO Subjjel
AQ YyIuow siy3 siaxydew a4yl pasudins g3 2y jo 1ySeug ouey ‘puod 3y) ssOI0Y

"35ud]ul 28 saUBYD SIIDUBLIND PUE SPUNY JO MO} ‘SUCIIENIIN|S S31R)
2y ‘sa8e1s SNOWEBA 1B S§0 UM SIDURLIND puE s3iel Suljdsye ysel uesjndiay
© 2 ||IM s}yIRW YL WOy Aeme Ajpinbi) Suryed ing ‘ Agajesis 03 Aduspuadap

eyep wouy Suinow aq Aew apn 'siead 1sed ays jo sweidoud Juised anissew
3y} puimun 03 sAem Suljnw Ajjeuonippe pue uoniisod awes ay) 0} Juiwod
3Je g9 2y} ‘pliom 3yl punode Suinosdwi 24n321d 21WOU0ID 3YL YU 8D 34l
10} 1YS1s Ul pud ue sl 31ay1 Juo| 05 10} UOIIEIO|SIP pUE uoneap Buljleq JAYY

‘yzed 231y 2184 J235B) B YUIM PJBMIOS SAOW 01 BIEP , 205, JUS231 3] JO 3PISINO
uoieasnl aney s|edIo pa4 awos 3ses| je Sunsassns , Ay1o0.4, se sipiew
jasse 03 Suluasal Aq s1sjJeWw 2A0W PIp UBWLIIRYD dY3 ‘saly1dads Adljod auniny jo
10US S||B} US||2A S|IYM "SUN[ Ul 1Y 314 B Ul PRYNSI SN 3] Ul S3UOY Yyspmey
JO ${23M 3y "SIJEW 3U1 J0) AJY100WS JuBM 3 pue 28ueyd ay) paydessalsy
pa4 3yl 'J10I3YJ 113y} OF JUBQ ysimey 31iulsp e Suippe Aq Suiualysi

Inoge Supjjel Lels osje (gD) sjueq [esauad Jofew se Sulunado st 38ueya Jolew
e 1ng 'AJ9A0I3J JO $35E1S JSMO| YINW 1B SIIWOU0I3 1Y MBS UdIym ‘Syueq
[B43U3D J3YIO DY} YUM JUAS JO N0 U3Q Sey pa4 3yl Jead ised ay3 404

>Ude‘_OZ 0] =2S.JN0H) wmcmcu syjueg jeljual) jeqoion




1A0g 01 spun- pa4 — aAIND PIBIA [INS - SeIBY YIUOJ JO pu3F

1£0€ 1£01 IS IAT IAT owg owg spuny pag
1 L L &O0.0

- 9050

9%00°T

91-120
91-d2(]

LI-1BN - — -

9%0S'T

O O e OO0 C

900'c

9%05'T

9%00°'E

9%05°¢

S9NSS| puewWap pue
Ajddns ajdwis uo umop saies ysnd 03 sanuIzU0d yarym suolndo |eqo|3 1oy10 anoge ulewas Asy) ‘a4e sajed SN N0 SE MO SY =
UOIIB|UI MO| PUE SWJ0J3J Ul AJuiesadun wodj sauajjeyd sadef pua SuojaylL =
(auoje JeaA S1Y3 %SZ'T 01 S2°0) S21ed 1Y pad ay3 se AisisAw ou stpud Woysayl =
(umop Suinow sajes Ja3uo| pue dn SulAow 311 JIOYS) AIND 18]} B 0} SAOW SNoJS3uUEp B Jubjew aie saley =
puoq Suoj eJ3|n B JO JulY S,ulyonuly audsap Suiuaiiel) AjIpeals uaaqg aney saley =

usig A1eds e st guLualield saiey

SILVIJOSSY ® NOSY¥3LLVd




'$99] JUp{UERQ 19SJJ0 0] Pasn SI Inq ‘STULLRs Jsaraul st parodal Sursq s1 1Ipar)) sduiwiey ayJ, ¢

‘1911enb 0} 1911enb woiy spuny s A1Loyiny ayl jo axnytpuadxa pue 3deoar ay) joapyar Ajuenid [Jis ng ‘eyep pounbal st ampA jappy W 28uvy) 7

“Aumnew 98e10Ae papSom sjuasardal AV AA |

V.13 nsuyny sndio)
I3DIIO 2ANNODXNY JoID) ‘0pay-ZNnID) 98Iof

I0STAPY JUSULISIAU] PAISISISIY ‘SDUIDIDOSSY W UOS421IDd VLY Bsuy) sndion

uasIa}}pd DI Iojjonduroy) ‘zapraeuag [atue(]

Qﬂ\\%ﬁwmﬁ&%\

%OTL'L portad 10j 9JON AInSear], J8IX [ PRIA 98e10AY
%0£0°T porrad 10§ [iigf AINSLIL], YIUOW 9 PPIX STBIAY
%IPT0 porrad 10J AJ1anyeA] 03 PPRIX ABRIAAY

(T66'8LT) %
skep 97

169 $
(89¢°1) $
00F'ET g
PP6'TLLIT S
TIEPLLIT §

PO[RA IR UL JsueyD

Qe potrad Surpuy 1B IV A SARD /¥ (Q1E(T poLa Guuudog 18 NV
SSOTT/UIB) PIZI[EIIU() Ul ATURY))
$807J/utef) pazljealur) (650°T) $ SsO7J/uieD) pazifealury
poriad 91} J0J QUWOIU] JUSTIISIAU]
InfeA 10HIBIA 9¢6°1S6°1  $ an[eA IR SuruuISaq
anjeA Yoog Sulpug S66'€S6°' 1T $ anfeA yoog SuruuIsoq
LIOT "0€ aunf o sv 0110f3104 LI0T "I€ Y2mp JO Sv 01jof1i0]

"(2pO)) JUSWIUWIDA0D) SEXAL, “9¢77 I01dryn) 19V JUSWISoAUT

spuny o1[an g 2yl PuB y.IL DD 2y JO £331enS pue A2I[0d JUoUWSIAU] 9yl yitm souriiduioo ur paredaid stirodar Sprayenb sy,

110ddy] JUAWRISRURA] AlBwng 01j0]310]

LT0T sunf - Yorepy
j0day] Jusunsaau] Aj1anengd)

SDX3 ], (V1) Koyny uoyvilodsun. J ipuoiday ysiiy) sndio)




o
&
S
¢0\(
S '%6£°0 SUIP|IA
W s1 01joj110d 1noA Jo uoliod yseds-uou ay]
N
< ‘3|qissod
| S J1 B3R JE3A OM] BY) 01Ul pue J33U0| 1IN0

Y212431s pue saduejeq ysed ainpslt 01 9wl st B

‘Ajddns paseasozap
Y1IM DAIRDBIIIE SSB| W0I3( Sey 1qap [eddiunw
pue s11S0dap Mau Ul palsaJau/un ulewsal sjueg =

%880,

‘sjood ay3 353q Ajisea [im JeaA auo puokaq
saley Jaded |e12J2WWOD 0} SS32E YUM

2503 J0} Aj|e1Dadsa 3|qe|leA. 2ie SaAljeUId) (e
wiia] 140YS pue anow s,pad ayl yim

dn aA0oW 01 NUIUOI S33BJ WIa3-Joys Asan ay)

%LS°TT

5.a0 %876 00/7'8
PUNd WA sapusby

"SUOIJIPUO 133JBW 3|138|0A 0} 1sn(pe J211aq ued
o1|0j110d payIsIaAIp B asnedaq Alunlew ageiane
P3]]0J1U02 B pue UoIleI0||e }3sse |ewldo

40} o1joj1iod unoA smainad AjJUeISUOD Yigd =

£10T ‘0€ aunr Jo sy

_ 9193415d oA




§'g’L o Uoday
0e'L (LNg 35d) Ind
dv

V.14 oljojod

ZLEL - ZLOT/ELILO BB UNY

TLEL L10Z/EL/L0 'YLEDT L3S pajepdn eleq
L£102/0£/90-£1.02/10/90 pouad Buipoday

J19)l01dwio) ‘Zepineuag [slueqg

-Apoq Buluianob ay) 0] 2INSOISIP [N} apInold 03 oljopiod By} jo suonejuasaldal oiydelb se jjam se ‘podal uonoesuel) e ‘pouad auy) 40 pus 3y} Joj podal AJojuanul pajielap 8 ‘MaInIaA0
fuewiwins juawaBeuew e apnjpul spodal sy JuswisaAul Jo oljoguod s ALIoUINY 8y} uiyim Apaoe pue uolisod auj jo Aluoyiny uonenodsuel | jeuoiBay BsuyD sndioD Jo Apog Buiusianob aul wuojul
AlIny 01 19p10 Ul 12y 2y} Aq paiinbai jou uonewuoul [eluswa|ddns Jayo osle spedal ayL (9522 9POD 1,A09) SExa]) 1Y JUSWISIAU| SPUn4 21|qnd 8y} Ylim 20UBDIODDE Ul PaRILIgNs aie spodas Buimoy|oy 8y

zZL'9v8'sE.

ajeq o) Jeaj [eIsid

L8 PSEY

~ Buipuz oW ogounp

JBS A WUBLND

sBuluieg [ejol

SjusWISaNU|
r4ZAl 8z |74 %00°001 26 LLEVLLLT YT YveTLLLT Yo Lp8TLL LT
L¥6°0 6L 89¢ LE'6 £9°158'920'2 £9'158'920°C £€9°158'920' uuy/D/uo Issie] - 5,00
0640 L L 82'6 L0°190°120°T L0°L90°L20'C 10°L90'L20'T spung WA
L100 I L 18'0L 8T ELYTEY'SL 8T ELY'TEV'SL 8TELY'TEY'GL SJUNOJDY Hueg
2LLO 68 62¢ 17’8 8Z'0.¢'L08'L 09'20L'008'L 00°000'008'L ssnunoes uodne) Aousby |esapad
9Z¥'0 ¥6 S9¢ 9Z¢ TL'SSY'T6Y TL G5V TeY ZL'SSr'ZeY ysodaq jo sajesyua)
*AInb3 g9¢ Aunyep wuay olloguod  enjep anjep anjen SIUDWISIAUY
WLA 01 sheq 30 % joog e led

9¥.82 XL ‘unsny

G61 SUng
JE4ON 'S LO6

$2]BI00SSY 9 U0sJajed

£102 ‘o¢ sunr

Arewwng oljojjiod
juswabeue|y oljojliod
V.1 Bsuyg sndion

2ILYII0ZSY ¥ NOP¥ALLVL



§'g'L JoA Hodey
0Z'L (18 48d) 1S

dv
V14O oljojiod

LLEL - Z1L0Z/ELIL0 @eq uny

82 fA 24l 00°001F T6'LILE'YLLIT Yo LPBTLL LT ki abelany pue |ejoL

8z W 96°66 6°1LZ0'89L°LZ 12718599241 oL lejolgng

L L1070 18°0L 8T'ELP'TEY'SL 8Z'ELY'TEV'SL ¢ SJUNCI2Y Hueg

6 9Z¥'0 9z'z ZL557'26Y ZLSSY'TeY 4 ysoda jo seyeoyiua)

L 0870 526 85°0LL'FLO'T 85°0LL'7L0T Z spund W

68 zLLO lz8 8Z'0.¥'L08'L 00°000'008'L z sanunosg uodnoy Asuafy eiepad

L6l L¥6°0 1€'6 £€9°1L58'920°2 £9'168'920'2 4 UUY/ID/UOW IS8l - 5,00

pund |esauas pundg

L 0sL'0 £0'0 £°062'9 £¥°062'9 2 lejolqns

b 0520 €00 £F'06Z'9 £Y06Z'9 L spund WA
£10Z puog UOIIONIISUOD pun4

Aunjen o3 S9E WLA oljojuod anjep yoog anjep sjudugsaAuUl adAl Aunoaag

sAeqg abesony obelany 10 % Jed 30 JaquinN

pun4d Aq padnoig

. £10Z ‘0€ sunr
9vL8L XL ‘upsny adf] Aq Arewwng

S61 24Ng
9BdOW S 106 v.1¥ suyo sndio)

$3JeID0SSY § UoSIajed

23LVII0DZSY 2 NOBHILLIVL



§°g’L U9/ Hoday
(R (EREREINE]
dv

V14D Ol|ojiod

gL-€L - ZLOT/EL/LO -Bjeq Uny

L 0540 orL0 £¥'06Z'9 £7°062°9 £¥'062'9 abelaAy pue sjudwisaau] [ejoL

I 05470 orL0 £¥°062'9 £P'06Z°9 £r°06Z'9 abelany pue |ejolgng

L 0620 6€L°0 050 £¥'06Z'9 £V'06T'9 £¥°06Z'9 ¥LOZ/PLIEQ 224D € NN Yueg 1SapA ises 59001 9.1¥00+998
spund AN

Ayunjep 9yeq 59¢ Q9¢g ajey anjep 1xlew anjep Jed anjep yoogq sjeg 1anssj| #juaunsaaul disno

ol sfeqg fMumew  WLA WLA Ny aseyoind

9vL8L XL ‘unsny
S61 24ng
JB4ON 'S 106

SOJRIDOSSY § UOSIBNE

2102 ‘og aunr
pund Aq spuawysanu|

€10Z puog uoiaNIIsuod - NOO pund

VLY 3suy9 sndiog

ZILYIIOZSY © NOSHILLIVL



$'g'L oA poday
L2 (147 48d) 14

ol:gl - LL0Z/eL/L0 =eg uny

dv
V1¥D oljojod
8z [Recali] 8ET°0 18°£59°99.°1Z LZ'1L85'99L°LE 6v°1L20'89L'LT abesany pue sjuausaau] [e3oL
L6L Lv6'0 8260 £9°158'920' £9°158'920°C £9°158'920'T obeiony pue |ejoyqng
552 gLOZ/EL/E0 00LL #80°L ooL’t LT LEL LZ0'L LT LEL'LEO'L LZLELLZO')L £1.02/20/20 yueq 1sapn Jse3 LgLol aszoLozzLt
ozl LLOZ/PO/LL 0820 69L°0 0820 Zy'0Z1'500'L Zr0ZL'600'L Z¥0Z1'500'L 9L0Z/F0/LL wueg 1sepn 1se3 seLolL LPOEPrELL
uuy/p/uo 3sedaiu| - s,do
1 060  6LL0 8S0LLPLOT 85°0LL'FLO'T 85°0LLYL0'T abeiany puE [E10JANS
L 0640 6LL0 08L0 8G°0LL'7L0'T 85°0LL'7L0T 8G°0LL'LO'T 9102/80/60 (XX44M) NN /0D obied silap £ZL0L 96525
L 000 000 000 9L0Z/6L/20 (XX dId) 35Ul WA dwud Allspl4 zzLoL V6525
spund WIN
L L0 L1000 8T ELYZEN'SL 8T EIYTEY'S)  gTELvEer'sL aBriany puE [E)0}ANS N )
L SL'LS6E 2.9l GLLS6'LL9'EL SL'LS6'LL9'EL ZLOZ/LO/LO Al 921040 yueg obiled s|japn Zoool 8891£99226
L 0sL'0 ¥io 0st0 £1°ZTS'PSL'L €LZS'PSL'L £LZTS'PSL'L 9L0Z/LO/LO dd siey 1pe sng obied s|Iapn Lol L8ZEOLLOVL
SJUN022Y yueg
68 [{ YA 2020 09'70L008'h 00°000°008°L 8Z°0L¥'LO8 L abeiany pue [ejolang
08 LL0Z/6LI60 80L0 869°0 056°0 00'.16'666 00°000'000°+ Z8°025'000°L 3L0Z/E0/LL SJON YINNS 6ZL0L 990099¢LE
Lol £102/0L/0L  9LL'D 90L'0 oSk 09'5Z1'008 00°000'008 9¥'676'008 9L0Z/e0/ kL 3joN g044 ogLoL svxaseele
sanunaag uodnon Aouaby |elapay
£6 9zv'0  0Zv'0 TL'55b'T6Y - zUssv'Ter ZLU55v'T6Y 2Besany pUE [E10)GNS o T : ] —
sz £102/92/20 0020 1610 00Z'0 00'000's%2 00°000'Gt2 00°000'5¥Z 9L0Z/92/L0 QD ueg Biagepy ¥ZLoL as6LLS
zol LL0Z/0LIZL 059°0 L¥9°0 0590 TL'GSY' LYE ZLSSY YT TLGSY YT 9L0Z/0L/ZL yueg [eucneN Baxyaci) 9eL0L gzoLol
Hsodaq Jo soled1u2D
Auney ajeqg §9¢ 09¢ ajey anjep jaxyJep anjep led anjep qoog ajeqg 43nss| # JusLu}sanu| disno
o] sheg funjely  WLA WLA juaungy aseyaing

2102 ‘0¢ aunp
pund Aq sjusuwysaau|

pung [eJaua9 - N3O pund

Z 9bed



§'¢'L Jap Hoday

0Z'L(QV d4d) ¥ 8E'€L - LLOZ/0Z/L0 91 Uny
dv
Y140 Oliojlod
25°155'666 00'000°Z66 0v°Z0E'ZL 88°05L'1 1e30L
25°155'666 00°000°266 0v°208'ZL 88'0SL't |ejolqng
8L'86.'c- Q00 000 gl'geL'e- SLOZ/SL/E0  8LOZ/SL/SO 1BIN %0L°L WO'L SM3 #9°591'8L0°L asgoL9geLL Isalsju| N3O LELOL L1L0Z/0€/90
gL'86.'c 00’0 8L'86L'C 000 gLOZ/EL/E0  8LOZ/SL/SO 1BIN %O0L°L NO'L 9ANT $9'S9L'8LO'L Qasgolocell Jsata| N3D LELOL LLOZ/0€/90
0L°256'L- 000 000 0.L'256'L- LL0Z/P0/LL  £L0Z/F0/L L 1BIN %84°0 WO'L 9M3 00°000°000°L LYOEvvCLL 1salaju| N3O S0l £ZL0Z/0€/90
0L'256'L 000 0L°256'L 000 LLOZ/PO/LL  ZL0Z/P0/LL TBIN %840 WO'L 9M3 00°000'000°L LPOErYTLL Isalap| N3D SEL0L L102/0€/90
00°000'8¥Z 00°000'8¥2 00’0 000 L1L0Z/60/50 BN %09°0 INZ'0 SMEANI  00°000'8+Z €D4d9LL9% Aunen N39 rELOL LL0Z/6Q/S0
00°000'8¥C 00°000'8%2 000 00°0 £10Z/60/S0LL0Z/60/50 YeIN %09°0 INZ'0 MENNd 00°000'8¥Z INDD0LZLL Aunyepy N3O €EL0L LL0Z/60/S0
00°000'8¥Z 00'000°8+2 000 000 £102/60/50 JelN %090 WZ'0 VNNOdD 00°000'8¥e £g3derovl Aunyepy N39D ZeL0L LL0Z/60/50
00°000'8tC 00'000'8%C 000 000 2102/60/50 TenN %090 INZ2'0 ¥80SIa  00°000'8¥E BLNZLI9YST Aumepy N39 LELOL £10Z/60/50
88'L8L 00°0 88°LEL 00°0 £102/60/50 TelN %090 WZ'0 SMEANI  00°000'8vZ €04d9LL9¢ Isalap| N3O YELOL LL0Z/60/50
88°LEL 00'0 88’LeL 000 £10Z/60/50L1L02/60/50 BN %09°0 INZ'0 MENNd  00°000°8%Z LYDD0LELL Jsalap| N39O €EL0L LL0Z/60/S0
88'L8L 00’0 88'Le/f 000 2102/60/50 ‘1IN %090 WZ'0 VNNOJD  00°000'8%2 £g83derart Jsasap| N39D ZELOL £10Z/60/50
88°LeL 000 88°.8L 000 L102/60/50 JelN %0970 WZ'0 Xg90SId  00°000'8vE 64LNZL9PSC Isalau| N39D LELOL £102/60/S0
00°009't [o]oNe} 00°009't 00'0 LL0Z/OLIOL  LLOZ/OL/OL JBIN %S5L°L We'0 9044 00°000'008 SvxXa3ceLe jsala| N3O QELOL ZL0Z/0L/P0
pun4 |elauan
ysesn suondwapay 3sa1aju| saseyoind ajeq uonduosag AUnddg  anjep ap funoeg adAL puny # JUBWIISOAU| aleq
Aunyep led ‘suel) ‘sues]

pun4 Aq padnoig
g 2102 ‘0g dunp - 2102 ‘L llidy polad 8y} Jo4

wmwwm_:wh unsny Joday uoneljouosay ysen
9BJON 'S 106 V1Y Bsuyo sndion

$9]BID0SSY R UOSIaNed

2ILYII0ZSY § NOSEILLIVL



§'gL e/ yoday
LLL (YN 3dd) YIN 9g'¢l - L102/02/L0 ®eg uny

dv
V14D ologiod
25°156' TG'L56'v66 2571562 00°000266 00°000°Z66 sanunje [ejol
88°LEL 88'LEL'8BYT 88°L8L 00'000°'8%C 0090 9102/60/LL LLOZ/60/SO 00'000'8YT ME8NNd 20N N39O gelol LYDD0LTLL
88°.LEL B8'LEL'BYT 88°L8L 00°000°8%2 0090 9L0Z/0L/LL  LLOZ/60/S0 00°000'8¥Z SHEANI  ZOW N3O ¥eLol €04d9LL9Y
88°L8L 88'LEL'8YT 88°LEL 00°000'8¥2 0090 91L02/60/LL  LLOZ/60/S0 00°000'8¥Z MEOsIa ZOW N3O LELOL B6LNZLIPSE
88'LEL 88'LEL'8VT 88'.8L 00'000'8+2 0090 9L02/60/LL  LLOZ/60/S0 00°000'8¥Z YNNOdD 2ZOW N3© ZelolL £93¥rort
awoIy| s$paadold Jsasaju| funjep 1e fumeyp 1 ajeq aeq anjep Jed Janss] adAL pundg # JuUaLIISAAU] disna
19N Kumep anjep yoog a1ey aseyaind  fqumep 038

L1027 ‘0g dunf - £10Z ‘L |udy Buunp anp sjunowy e
. ajeq Aanje Aq pauos =
9pL8L XL ‘unsny Linje
g61 SIS Hoday funjep
9BJOI 'S L0B V1Y 3suyo sndio)

$9]e10088Y g UosIajjed

23LYI1029Y ¥ NORYILLIVd



§'€°L o Hoday

0Z'2 (3 34d) 31 £EIEL - £10Z/0T/L0 @¥eq uny
dv

V14D oljojliod

SL°00F'ElL 0L yor'L- ST'P98'vL 2e9°0 00°69.°€05°8 v1'8LL'080°6 6V°068°V60°8 lejoL

LL88E'EL oLyor'L- L8'zsevL z£9°0 0198V L6¥'8 St'66V'vL06 90'009°880°8 lejoigng

LB'PSL 000 LB'FSL 0080 009°0 £102/60/50 ¥#'095'€0L 00°000'8%2 000 ZOW N3D FELOL £04d9LL9Y
L6'PSL 000 L6FSL 0080 0090 £10Z/60/50 ¥¥'095'€0L 00°000'8%Z 000 ZOW NID ceLol LYDD0LZLHL
LE'PSL 00°0 LB'¥SL 009°0 0090 £10T/60/50 ¥¥'095'€0L 00°000'8%C 000 ZOW NID zELOL £8IHTrOVL
60'829'¢ 000 60'8Z9' €2L0 0640 9¢°LPE'TI0'E 6tZrLLLO'T 85'0LL'VL0E Ty N3 LzZLoL 96525
20°959 000 z0'959 05L°0 05L°0 0.'960'7S.'L LL'998'€5L L £1°225'PSLL dyy N3© LLLOL L82€9LL0FL
L6751 000 LE'PSL 009°0 0090 £10Z/60/50 v¥'095'€0L 00°000'8vZ 000 ZoN N3O LELOL BLNZLO¥SZ
0L256'L 00'0 04'256'L 1840 08L0 £L0Z/P0/LL 8L'68L'E0Q'L 2L/91'E00'L ZH'02L'500'L cuy N3O SeL0L LY9SHZLL
8L'86L'C 000 gL'86.L'C LoL'L 00L'L gL0Z/CL/E0 BL'E96'8LO'L £0'€E6'8L0'L LZ'LeL'1eo’L gy N3© LELOL aszoLozzLl
L0 LO¥ 000 LO'LOY 059°0 0590 LLOZ/OLZL TL'SSY'L¥E TLSSY'LVE TLSSY LYE aos NID 9¢LoL 820191
LL°ZEL 000 JARAA 00Z°0 00Z°0 LL0OZ/9T/L0 00'000'6¥T 00°000'SvE 00'000'6+2 aong NID vZLol Qg66LLS
S8 9ch'L SL'go8- 00'00€'2 6LL0 0SL°L LLOZ/OLOL LLPLE'LO8 Le'2L8'L08 00°000'008 ovd N3D 0cLOL gvyxa3eele
SOvLL'L $6°009- 00°62£'2 LLL0 0560 LLOZ/6L/60 68°918'000°L LLLZL'L00'E 00°000°000'L o4 N3O 6ZLO0L 990099¢LE

pund [eiaud :pung

£v'06Z'9 lejoiqng

Ll 00°0 yLL 0gL0 06'282'9 66'8.Z'9

veLL 000 vrLL 0€L’0 05470 06°282'9 66'8.2'9 E7'062'9 4y NOD S900L 9.L¥00+998
€10z puog uoilanJIsuoy :pung

sBujuieg uolaid0y pauleg PISIA ajey ajeq anjep yoog anjep yoog anjep Jed adA) pung # JUSWISAAU| disnod

3sasa| paisnipy  juonezipowy 159l9ju| pazijlenuuyiuaung  fQuniey  abelaay Buluwbag Buipuz funoeg

w.m_.__E.mm 3sala)u) uwum.:__.u,q

anjep yoog abelaAy uo pIaIA
L10Z ‘ogdunr - £10Z ‘L 1udy i
= pund - pung Aq pajog

9%/8. XL ‘unsny
61 IS sbuluiey jsalaju|
it R V1Y Bsuyo sndion

$9]RI00SSY | UOSIaed

ZILYII0RSY T NODREILLVe



§'g'L oA poday

L2 L (MSY Jud) SV ¥E-€L - LL0T/0T/L0 ®jeqg uny

dv
V14D ollojiod

8E'PE6'T
8T0LY°L TlLig'e 0L'vor L~ 29°L0¥'2- 8T°0Lp 1L08°L 00°Zre's 00°Tre'508°L lejoL

8C'PE6'T
8Z'0LYL LULLg'es 0L'yor'L- T9°L0¥'T- 8T 0L¥°108°} 00°ZPe's 00°Z¥e'S08°L lejoigng

LLLTL) 056°0 SION VINNS
Z8'028 81685 k- §$6°009- £2°886- 28'025'000'L 00°0LL'T 00°0LL'ZOO'L 00°000°000°L L10Z/61/60 NE) 62L0l

L9zi8'L 0SL°1L 8J0N 8044
oF'6v6 +5°282'2- SlL'€98- BEBLYL- 9¥'6¥6'008 00°zZeT's 0022’08 00°000°008 £10Z/0L/0L N3O 0gLaL

pung |eisuag

210Z/0€/90 yBnoayy 210Z/0€/90 ybnoay pouad siyl L10Z/10/v0 JO sY anjeA yoog junoaIsiqg 10 jedioung ajey LNy ajeq ‘Howy pung 1anssj
PazZIJOWERUN JUNOWY PIZIHOWY Jwy pazipowy junowy pazioweun puy Buipuz wnwalg [euwbuo aseyoing = 2 =

paziuowy sjunowy anjep Jed buiuwbag ajeq Auniepn # Juswsanu|

pung - pung Ag pauog ERLl
‘ [

- L10Z ‘0g dunf - £10Z ‘) udy
9p/L8L X1 ‘unsny
e e a|npayos2g uoneziowy
2B4OI 'S 106 V1Y Bsuyo sndion

$OJBID0SSY 'R UOSIayed

ZILYIIOEEY § NDSEILLV:



G'g°L J9A Hodey

0'Z'L (0d™28d) Od 6EEL - ZL0ZI0Z/L0 Bjeg Uny
dv
YL1dD oljojod
8L'v06'€0£°C 9y griLL TLSS1'TeT'T TLL6L16TT TLSSP'T6ZT 'STVLOL ANVYO
8L'v90'6PZ 9%°309°L TLSSP' LT TLSSYLYT ZL'SSP' LT L10Z 12quwiadaQ 10§ |ej0L
8L'P90'6¥Z 9¥'80%'L TLSSP'LYE LSS YT TLSSY'LYE jueg [2UOnEN HaX00ID Aunep az0L9t N39 9cL0L  LLOZ/OL/TL
L10Z 1aqwala(
00009708 00°009'% 00°000'008 00°7£Z°¢08 007000008 L10Z 4940320 40§ |eJ0L
00°009't08 00°009't 00'000'008 00°Z€T'€08 00'000'008 310N 8244 Aune SyXa3eele N3O 0SL0L  ZLOZ/OL/OL
2102 1940320
00°052'700°L 00°05L'% 00°000'000°}1 00°041°200°L 00°000'000°L LL0Z 42quidjdag 104 [eJ0L
00°05L'+00'L 00'05L't 00°000'000°'L 00°0LL'Z00°L 00°000'000°t 310N YINNL Qunyep 990099¢LE N3O 6ZL0L  LL0Z/6L/60
L10Z 1equisydeg
00°06%'SYZ 00°06% 00°000's¥2 00'000°5¥2 00°000'S¥2 2107 Minp J0j Jejo )
00°06¥'SYT 00°06¥ 00°000's¥e 00'000's¥2 00°000'G¥2 Q0 yueg Biagaly fumepy as66LLS N39 $ZLOL  LLOZ/9Z/LO
L10Z Ainp
|elol }salaju| |edioung 1509 [eulbu anjep Jed lanss| adA] al Ayunsag pundg # Juawilsanu| ajeq "suel]
uonaesues] pajoaaloid

810z ‘1¢ Arenuer - 210z ‘L AInp poliad 2y} Jod 3 -
- Alyyuo Aq pasjos Fi ey el

i N Joday mopysen pajaaloid
9edOW 'S 106 V1Y Bsuyo sndio)

S9lBI00SSY g Uosiajjed

ZILYIIORTY § NOSUILLIVL



§°€L Ja/\ Hoday
02 (017 39d) 0L

VL1492 ollojlod

Ov-€L - LL0Z/0T/L0 ‘#ieq uny

000 LL'996'Lye- 00°000'8+Z 00'0 LL996' L2 08'¢eL L1L0Z/60/50 000°0 000 £04d9LL9¥
00°0 00°000'8¥E" 00°000'8+Z 000 00°000'8+Z LE'¥SL 9L0Z/0L/LL N39 SHEANI PELOL
000 L1'996'LyE- 00°000'8+2 000 LL°996'LYT 88'LEL £1L0Z/B0/S0 000°0 000 LYOD0LZLL
000 00°000'8¥2- 00°000'8+Z 000 00°000'8+Z L6'PS1L 9L0Z/60/LL N3O MgNNd £ELOL
000 LL626'LyE- 00°000'8+2 00°0 LL'BLB'LYT 88 /8L LLOZ/60/S0 000°0 000 £aIuIrOYL
000 00°000'8¥2- 00°000'8+2 00°0 00°000'8t2 LE'¥SL 9L0Z/60/LL N39O YNNOdQ zZeLol
00'0 L1618'LvE- 00°000'8+2 000 LL'BLB'LYE 88°LEL LL0Z/60/50 000°0 00°0 BLNTLIFSE
000 00°000'8YE- 00°000'8+Z 000 00°000'8+Z L8'¥S 1L 9L0Z/60/LL N3D ¥g0s1a LELOL
85°0LL'7L0'T 60'829'¢ 000 60°8Z9'c 67 ZrLLLO'E 60'829'c I 06.°0 85°0LL'v10'T 96525
86°0LL'7L0'T 60'829'¢ 00'0 60°8Z9'¢ 6P ZrLLLO'E 80'8Z9'¢ 91L02/80/60 N39O AINAD M L2101
00'0 000 000 000 000 000 /1! 000°0 000 w6525
00°0 00°0 000 000 00°0 000 9L0Z/6L/20 N3O INNdS zzlLol
€L'ZTGPSL'L 20°959 00'0 20°959 L1'998'e5L'L Z0'959 By, 05L°0 €L°ZTS'P5LL L8ZEILLOVL
€L'2es'vsL'L 20°959 000 20°959 L1'998'e5.'L 20°959 9L0Z/L0/L0 N3O JHINGSM LLLOL
SL'LG6'LL9'EL 18°¥EL'¥08 Lp'800'€9Z°04 8Z'Cr.'L90'LL 8T°912'€48'CL 000 I 0000 SLULS6'LL9'EL 9891£99226
GlLG6'LL9'EL L8'vEL'v08 L¥'800'€9Z 0L 8Z'EVL'L90'LL 8zolz'el8'zlL [o[ols] zL0Z/L0/L0 N3ID AIDHM 200014
pund [elauas) :pung
£7°062'9 PrLL 000 prLL 66'8.2'0 wrLL
£7'062'9 v LL 00°0 vl 66'842'9 FrLL 0Z puog UoI2NIISUOD :pund 104 s[elol qng
£7'06T'9 FLL 000 vl 86'8.2'9 yrLL /1 05270 £1'062'9 9/1+00¥998
£7°062'9 rLL 000 vyl 66'842'9 FrLL ¥1L0Z/PLIED NQD WNEM3 5900L
0Z puog uoljonasuo) pungy
anjeA 1ajJen anjea ul abueyn  suondwspay suonippy anjea 1) [P EINCRERREEIE M ajeq e LA anjeA Jed disng
Buipu3 /53sey2ind Bujuuibag
anjeA yoog anjeA xyoog [ENJDY }SaIa)U| ale(] yoaind pun4 1anss| # AUl
Buipug Buuuibag

210Z ‘Og dunr- 2102 ‘L |udy
) pungd Aq payog
9282 XL ‘unsny 1oday |eA ul sbueyn asueljdwon sexa|

S6L 9N
om%%w 106 V1Y isuys sndion

$2]B100SSY ¢ Uoslajed

ZILYIIOTTY 5 NOSEALIVd



$'e'L oA Yodey
02 (DL 44d) 2L

V14D oljojiod

O¥'€l - LL0Z/0Z/20 =eQ Uny

YT rye'zLLLE 86°L66'8LL- Lb'800'652 LL LLBBL'OLO'LL TT9E6'LG6'LZ 60°900'94
T6LLE'YLLLT 08'289'6L1L" L¥'800'65Z'LL LLB8L'9LO'LL ZTLYB6'ES6'LZ ST¥o8'vl :s|ejo) puels poday
18'€69'99.'1LZ Y E00'6LL" L¥'800'GSZ 1L LT°8LI'9L0'LL £2°L59'6¥6'LT G9'¥66'GL
6¥'LZ0'89L'LE vT 69641 L¥'800'552'LL L2'942'920'L1 €LGLLLYE' LT 18'zs8'vL punj [elaud9 pung io4 sjejol qng
LZ'Les'Lzo't 8L°86L'T 000 8L°86L'T £0'€E6'8L0'L 8L'86L'Z 810Z/EL/E0 0oLt Lz’ LeL'120'L Q529L9ZTLL
LZ'LeL'Lzo'L 8L'86L'2 00'0 8L'86L'C £O'EE6'8L0'L 8L86L'T £10T/L0/€0 N3O am3 LeLol
TLSSY'LYE 000 00'0 000 TLSSY'LYE 000 £10Z/0L/2L 0590 TLSSY LT gcoL9l
TLSSY LT 0070 000 000 TLSSY'LYE L0'Lo¥ 910zZ/0L/2k N3O aND 9eLoL
Zr'0ZL's00'L 0L72S6'L 000 0L'2S6'L ZLL9L'E00'L 0L72S6'L LLOZ/FO/LL 0820 Zy'0ZL'500'L LYOEYPTLL
Zr'0ZL'500'L 0L7256'L 000 0L'Z86'L ZLL9L'E00'L 0L°2ZS6'L SLOZ/FO/LL N3O a3 seLolL
09'5Z1'008 0%’ 99¢- 000 000 00°265'008 T LLOZIOLOL 9LL0 00°000'008 swxa3zecie
9t'6¥6'008 §1'¢98- 000 000 19°718'L08 00°00£'Z SLOZ/E0/LL N3O 8044 0£LOL
00°L.6'666 00°GLt 00°0 000 00°Z6£'000'L 000 L1L0Z/6L/60 80L°0 00°000°000'L 99009D9¢LE
28'025'000'} $6'009- 00°0 000 LLVLTL'LO0' 00°62£'2 SLOZ/E0/LL N3O WYINNS 6CLOL
00°000'G+Z 000 000 00'0 00°000'6tZ 000 L10Z/92/L0 0020 00°000'5%2 as6LLs
00°000'S¥2 000 000 000 00°000'G+Z L1TTL 9L02/92/L0 N3D aosy veiLoL
anjep 1xiep anjea ul abuey)  suondwapay SUOLIPPY anjep 1ep PaAIROaY 152I8JU| 318 1B LA anjep Jed disn)
Buipug /saseyoind Buiuuibag
anjep yoog anjeA yoog [en9y 1sa13u| aleg uaind  pun4 Janss| # AU
Buipug Buuuibag

2102 ‘og dunr - £10Z ‘L (udy
Z abeg uoday Jea ul abueys asueldwon sexa)

V1Y 3suys sndion



CORPUS CHRISTI REGIONAL
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

Administration & Finance Committee Memo September 27, 2017
Subject: August 2017 Financial Report

SUMMARY: The Authority’s net financial performance for the month of August falls
short of budget by $20,689. The shortfalls can be attributed to three factors: namely:

o The emergency mobilization efforts from Hurricane Harvey that affected both
operating revenues and operating expenses;

e Non-operating revenue actuals from sales tax revenues and grant assistance
revenues that fell short of budget expectations; and

e The depreciation expense that continues to exceed budget because of the
differences in the percentages applied in local and federal portions.

Since Sales Tax Revenue represents 92% of non-operating revenues, and 85% of total
revenues, it is necessary to report the financial impact separately. The accounting
accrual for the month fell short of $77,967.

REVENUES

= Sales Tax Allocation — Received in September
The sales tax allocation received on September 11, 2017, in the amount of
$2,579,516.61 represents collections for the month of July. The July collections fell
short of July 2016 by $19,959.29 reflecting a negative growth of 0.77%. However, in
comparison to the YOY (Year-over-Year, January-July) to the same period last year
it was higher by $207,905.34 or 1.31%. This positive growth in YOY is a result of
the combined monthly increases from March through June.

As a reminder, allocations lag two months behind.

» Sales Tax Allocation — Received in August
The sales tax allocation received in August for $3,121,816.87 represents consumer
spending in June and is encouraging because it is the first month of the budget year
that sales tax revenue reached the $3 million dollar mark. The allocation in
comparison to the same period last year is higher by $190,066 or 6.5%. YOY (Year-
to-Year) collections for 2017 totaled $15,774,522 which is $229,991.13 higher than
the same period last year and represents a positive growth of 1.48%.

The allocation for the month of June exceeded the monthly budget by $121,817, or
4.06%. However, the Year-to-Date allocations fall short of budget by $843,078, or
5.1%.

19



Sales Tax Revenue Reported in August Financials

For clarity the actual sales tax revenue of $2,645,533 reported in the August
financials represents an accumulation of transactions that have occurred to date.
The transactions include the allocation estimate that will be received in October
2017 which represents August collections, reversal to the July accrual and the
recording of the actual July allocation that was received. This process is a result of
the two month lag in sales tax allocations in a full accrual accounting environment.

Operating Revenues — For the month of August, Passenger Service collected
revenues of $125,083 in August, a decrease of $38,486 or 23.52% in comparison to
August 2016 which totaled $163,569. However, there are 6 days of lost passenger
fare revenues due to Hurricane Harvey which attributes to the budget shortfall of
$75,031. A preliminary review of the passenger income during August 25 and
August 31 indicates a decrease in revenues by $17,236.07 in comparison to the
same period last year.

EXPENSES

Over all, monthly departmental expenses are under budget by $136,673, or 5.2%. For
the year to date, expenses are under budget by $734,621, or 3.4%. The majority of the
variances are due to timing of purchases for supplies and cost-savings from several
unfilled staff positions, offset by higher health insurance costs. Following are comments
relating to the specific expense categories.

Salaries & Benefits — August reflects $1,093,946, which is 7.96% ($94,616) under
budgeted amounts. For year to date expenses, this category is 7.15% under
budget.

Services — August reflects $221,570, which is 21.27% ($59,848) under budgeted
amounts.

Materials and Supplies — August reports $283,966, which is 17.02% ($41,292) over
budgeted amounts. The main variance is related to timing of receipt of invoices for
repair parts and supplies for fleet vehicles.

Utilities — August reports $66,081, which is 43.44% ($50,754) under budgeted
amounts.

Insurance — August reports $410,211, which is $144,388 (54.32%) over budgeted
amounts. The major factors of this variance are health insurance claims invoices and
an adjustment to a carried property insurance premium credit.

Purchased Transportation — August reports $369,364 which is $110,139 (22.97%)
under budgeted amounts. The variance is related to the timing of invoices from MV
Transportation.

20



»  Miscellaneous — August reports $33,654 which is $6,995 (17.21%) under budgeted
amounts. The variance is primarily due to the timing differences.

Please refer to the following page for the detailed financial statement.
Respectfully Submitted,

Submitted by: Marie Sandra Roddel
Director of Finance

T/ g
Reviewed by: < Zgéz/[ };% :
Robert M. Saldana

Mar?jng Director of Administration

Chief’Exetutive Officer

Final Approval by:

21



Corpus Christi Regional Transportation Authority
Statement of Revenues and Expenditures By Cost Center (Unaudited)
Months ended August 31, 2017 & August 31, 2016

Operating Revenues:
Passenger service
Bus advertising
Charter service
Other operating revenues
Total Operating Revenues

Operating Expenses:
Transportation
Customer Programs
Purchased Transportation
Service Development
MIS
Vehicle Maintenance
Facilities Maintenance
Contracts and Procurements
CEO's Office
Finance and Accounting
Materials Management
Human Resources
General Administration
Capital Project M anagement
Marketing & Communications
Safety & Security
Debt Service
Staples Street Center
Total Departmental Expenses
Depreciation
Total Operating Expenses
Operating [ncome (Loss)

Other Income (Expense)
Sales Tax Revenue
Federal, state and local grant
assistance
Investment Income
Gain (Loss) on Disposition
of Property
Other Income (Expense)
Subrecipient Grant Agreements
Street Improvements Program
for CCRTA Region Entities
Net Income (Loss) Before Capital Grants
and Donations
Capital Grants & Donations

Change in Net Assets

Current Month

Prior Year Comparison

Favorable Favorable
(Unfavorable) (Unfavorable)
Actual Budget Variance 2016 Comparison
A B AvsB C AvsC
125,083 200,114 (75,031) 163,569 (38,487)
13,448 18,268 (4,820) 1,052 12,396
1,581 33,750 (32,169) 40,771 (39,190)
140,111 252,132 (112,021) 205,392 (65,281)
542,122 577,154 35,032 571,269 29,147
58,180 37431 (20,749) 19,958 (38,222)
370,415 479,503 109,088 500,195 129,780
34,452 35451 999 113,256 78,804
71,006 71,556 550 79,007 8,001
380,576 410,532 29,956 404,869 24,293
155,756 146,688 (9,068) 128,409 (27,347)
12,834 14,618 1,784 16,305 3,471
49,696 52,159 2,463 44,939 (4,757)
33,672 40,876 7,204 79,464 45,792
15,325 13,785 (1,540) 15,098 (227)
433,582 442,677 9,095 484,622 51,040
34,304 50,410 16,106 22,778 (11,526)
16,683 16,284 (399) 15,445 (1,238)
51,488 46,821 (4,666) 61,746 10,258
177,831 105,244 (72,587) 101,891 (75,940)
40,881 74,286 33,405 49,354 8,473
2,478,802 2,615,475 136,673 2,708,605 229,803
708,333 390,067 (318,266) 663,747 (44,586)
3,187,135 3,005,542 (181,593) 3,372,352 185,217
(3,047,024) (2,753410) (293,614) (3,166,960) 119,936
2,645,533 2,723,500 (77.967) 1,756,734 888,799
114,843 186,667 (71,824) 225,650 (110,807)
4,835 8,167 (3,331 8,348 (3,513)
- 4,583 (4,583) 17,000 (17,000)
30,103 30,353 (250) - 30,103
(252,728) (229,083) (23,645) - (252,728)
(504,437) (29,224) (475,213) (1,159,228) 654,791
454,524 - 454,524 - 454,524
(49,913) (29,224) (20,689) (1,159,228) 1,109,315

22



CORPUS CHRISTI REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

Statement of Net Position

Month ended August 31,2017 and year ended December 31,2016

ASSETS

Current Assets:

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Investments

Receivables:
Sales and Use Taxes
Accrued Interest
Federal Government
Other

Inventories

Prepaid Expenses
Total Current Assets

Non-Current Assets:
Restricted Cash and Cash Equivalents
Capital Assets:
Land
Buildings
Transit Stations, Stops and Pads
Other Improvements
Vehicles and Equipment
Construction in Progress
Current Year Additions
Total Capital Assets
Less: Accumulated Depreciation
Net Capital Assets
Total Non-Current Assets
TOTAL ASSETS

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflow related to pensions
TOTAL ASSETS AND DEFERRED OUTFLOWS

23

Unaudited Audited
August 31 December 31
2017 2016
23,560,450 § 15,727,428
4,070,477 9,002,510
5,051,621 5,439,760
15,289 54,719
- 406,078
46,414 36,938
702,531 610,376
1,068,475 280,434
34,515,258 31,558,243
1,611,302 1,728,452
3,658,054 3,658,054
49,958,064 49,958,064
25,799,089 25,799,089
4,706,675 4,706,675
63,604,886 63,604,886
209,190 209,190
9,412,825 -
157,348,784 147,935,958
(73,261,774) (67,595,109)
84,087,009 80,340,849
85,698,311 82,069,300
120,213,568 113,627,543
4,550,803 4,550,803
124,764,371 118,178,346




CORPUS CHRISTI REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
Statement of Net Position (cotinued)
Month ended August 31,2017 and year ended December 31,2016

LIABILITIES AND NET POSITION

Current Liabilities:
Accounts Payable
Contractors Retainage Payable
Current Portion of Long-Term Liabilities:
Long-Term Debt
Compensated Absences
Distributions to Regional Entities Payable
Other Accrued Liabilities
Total Current Liabilities

Non-Current Liabilities:
Long-Term Liabilities, Net of Current Portion:
Long-Term Debt
Compensated Absences
Net Pension Liability
Net OPEB Obligation
Total Non-Current Liabilities

TOTAL LIABLILITES

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflow related to pensions
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND DEFERRED INFLOWS

Net Position:
Net Invested in Capital Assets
Restricted for Debt Service
Unrestricted

TOTAL NET POSITION

See Notes to Financial Statements

24

Unaudited Audited

August 31 December 31
2017 2016

643,149 843,276
289,246 1,293,190
555,000 555,000
275,328 275,328
3,578,733 3,329,846
546,043 625,718
5,887,499 6,922,358
19,820,000 19,820,000
185,229 185,229
3,320,400 3,320,409
435,418 435,418
23,761,057 23,761,056
29,648,555 30,683,414
195,034 195,034
29,843,589 30,878,448
63,712,010 60,082,998
1,611,302 1,611,302
29,597,469 25,605,598
94,920,782 $ 87,299,898




Corpus Christi Regional Transportation Authority
Statement of Cash Flows (Unaudited)
Month ended August 31,2017

8/31/2017
Cash Flows From Operating Activities:
Cash Received from Customers $ 138,574
Cash Received from Bus Advertising and Other Ancillary 18,824
Cash Payments to Suppliers for Goods and Services (1,429,632)
Cash Payments to Employees for Services (665,955)
Cash Payments for Employee Benefits (530,670)
Net Cash Used for Operating Activities (2,468,858)
Cash Flows from Non-Capital Financing Activities:
Sales and Use Taxes Received 3,121,817
Grants and Other Reimbursements 114,843
Net Cash Provided by Non-Capital Financing Activities 3,236,660
Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities:
Federal and Other Grant Assistance 454,524
Purchase and Construction of Capital Assets (199,054)
Net Cash Provided by Capital and Related Financing Activities 255,470
Cash Flows from Investing Activities:
Investment Income 2,274
Maturities and Redemptions of Investments 245,000
Net Cash Provided by Non-Capital Financing Activities 247,274
Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents 1,270,546
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Including Restricted Accounts), August 31,2017 23,901,206
Cash and Cash Equivalents (Including Restricted Accounts), August 31,2017 $ 25,171,752

25



REGIONAL TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY
OPERATIONS & CAPITAL PROJECTS COMMITTEE MEETING MINUTES
WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 23, 2017

Summary of Actions

Conducted Roll Call
Provided Opportunity for Public Comment
3. Action to Approve Operations & Capital Projects Committee Meeting
Minutes of July 26, 2017
4. Action to Recommend the Board Authorize the Chief Executive Officer
(CEO) or Designee to Award a Contract to Ram-Bro Contracting, Inc. for
Parking Lot Improvements at the Corner of Leopard and Artesian Streets
5. Heard Presentations:
a. 2017 Mid-Year Ridership and Performance Report
b. July 2017 Operations Report
c. Procurement Update
6. Adjournment

N =

The Regional Transportation Authority Operations & Capital Projects Committee met at
8:30 a.m. in the Regional Transportation Authority Staples Street Center facility located
at 602 N. Staples Street, 2™ Floor Board Room, Corpus Christi, Texas.

Committee Members Present: Michael Reeves, Edward Martinez, George Clower,
Glenn Martin and Scott Harris.

Committee Members Absent: None

Staff Present: Jorge Cruz-Aedo, CEO,; Daniel Benavidez, Esteban Campos, David
Chapa, Kelly Coughlin, Jennifer Fehribach, Angelina Gaitan, Bryan Garner, Anna
Hinojosa, Monica Jasso, Denise Jones, Dena Linnehan, Derrick Majchszak, Sharon
Montez, Victoria Reyes, Mike Rendon, Gordon Robinson, Sandy Roddel, Robert
Saldaria and Susan Teltschik

Public Present: Benjamin Schmit, MV Transportation; Gina Salazar, ATU Local 1769;
Barbie Baker, JBBM Consulting & Promotions; Lisa Keckler and Pat Mahoney, Wells
Fargo

Call to Order & Roll Call

Mr. Michael Reeves called the meeting to order at 10:22 a.m. Ms. Dena Linnehan
called Roll and stated a quorum being present.

Opportunity for Public Comment
No one spoke under Public Comment.




Action to Approve the Operations & Capital Projects Committee Meeting Minutes
of July 26, 2017

MR. SCOTT HARRIS MADE A MOTION TO APPROVE THE
OPERATIONS & CAPITAL PROJECTS COMMITTEE MEETING
MINUTES OF JULY 26, 2017 AS AMENDED. MR. EDWARD MARTINEZ
SECONDED THE MOTION. REEVES, MARTINEZ, CLOWER, MARTIN
AND HARRIS VOTING IN FAVOR. THE MOTION CARRIED. ABSENT
NONE.

Action to Recommend the Board Authorize the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) or
Designee to Award a Contract to Ram-Bro Contracting, Inc. for Parking Lot
Improvements at the Corner of Leopard and Artesian Streets

Ms. Sharon Montez commented as part of the Staples Street Center project, vacant
land was purchased at the corner of Leopard and Artesian. She said the property was
initially to be used as a construction yard for Fulton Coastcon, and upon completion of
Staples Street Center, it would become an extension of the main parking lot.
Ms. Montez commented that once the General Land Office moves into the building in
March of 2018, this lot will accommodate the additional parking needed at Staples
Street Center and would be needed for their vehicles as a tenant. She also commented
this project Invitation for Bids (IFB) was issued June 28" with pre-bid meeting held on
July 8™ and Ram-Bro Contracting, Inc. came in with the lowest bid of $157,544.

Heard Presentations:

a. July 2017 Operations Report
Mr. Gordon Robinson reported for July Operations, boardings for all services totalled
443,044, or 0.7 percent increase. He said year-to-date recorded 3,014 more
boardings for a increase of 0.7 percent in 2017 versus year-to-date in 2016.

Mr. Robinson reported unleaded fuel cost of $2.02 per gallon versus $2.00 per
gallon in 2016. He commented Customer Service processed 58 Customer
Assistance Forms (CAF’s) and 36 were verified as valid, or a significant decrease
from the 42 verified CAF’s in June 2017, and there were 7 commendations for the
month of July.

The actions taken as a result of reported CAF's include coaching and counseling,
driver training, progress disciplinary action as appropriate, group discussion and
coaching in the operator meetings, discussions in supervisor's meetings and an
examination of the CCRTA Operations Policy.

He also reported there were 7,579 miles between road calls (MBRC) were recorded
in July 2017 compared to 10,168 in July 2016, and that a standard of 6,500 miles
between road calls is used, based on the fleet size, age, and condition of CCRTA
vehicles. Mr. Robinson said in July 2017, the Agency reported three vehicle

2



accidents, one determined as non-preventable and two were preventable, there
were 16 customer-related incidents, and the operators drove a total of 309,523.30
miles. He stated that the Agency’s accident rate for the month of July is 1.65 per
hundred thousand miles driven with the desirable range at 2.0 or less.

Mr. Robinson also commented on Safety and Security and reported for July 2017,
the Agency clocked 1,400 hours of security coverage in all areas of operations. He
said the officers reported four arrests for public intoxication, issued 21 criminal
trespass warnings, arrested 8 individuals for criminal trespassing, made 333
contacts with people and responded to 19 other calls for service.

. Procurement Update

Mr. Robert Saldana reported on the current projects of two issuances of Request for
Proposals (RFPs) being presented in October for Board review; one for the Law
Enforcement Services at a cost of $2,035,116; and the other being for Local and
Long Distance Service Provider at a cost of $91,008, and both will go before the
committee for review at the September meeting. The remaining procurement is for
Leopard Street Parking Lot Improvements at a cost of $90,119 and will be an
Issuance for Bid (IFB) for Board review in September.

Mr. Saldafia reported on the statistics of these projects where 7 agencies were
contacted for the Law Enforcement Services, 4 attended the pre-bid meeting, yet no
bids were received. He said for the Parking Lot Improvements there were 407
agencies contacted, 3 attended the pre-bid meeting and six bids received.

Mr. Saldafia reported on the four projects on the 4-month outlook going for Board
review in September and December, both 3 year with two 1-year options; one being
for bus passes at $102,000, and the other being for depository and banking services
at $57,600. The other two items will be presented for Board review in February
2018; one for portfolio management on the DB & DC Plans at $186,000, and the
other one for actuarial services on defined benefits at $57,600.

Mr. Saldafia provided details regarding the CEO’s 4-month outlook which includes
six projects. He said four of the projects will be a 1 year agreement with two 1-year
options; Solid waste services not to exceed $20,214; Two - Occupational Therapist
Services both not to exceed $12,000 each. The other two items are for unleaded
fuel 1-Year agreement with one 1-year option not to exceed $31,500, and the one
year agreement with Benetrac not to exceed $16,308.

Month-to-month agreements, as stated by Mr. Saldafia, are for three projects and
are contracts for Long Term Disability at $21,550, the Marina Rental Space contract
at $11,893 and a pre-employment background screening service not to exceed
$20,300.



Adjournment
There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 10:40 a.m.

Submitted by: Dena Linnehan



CORPUS CHRISTI REGIONAL
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

Operations & Capital Projects Committee Memo September 27, 2017

Subject: Authorize Awarding a Contract to Off Duty Services for Law Enforcement
Services at CCRTA Properties

Background

Request for issuance of a Request for Proposals for Law Enforcement Services was
approved by the Board on May 3, 2017. At the April 26, 2017 Administration and
Finance Committee it was requested that the Board be presented with the scope of
work for the Law Enforcement Services RFP prior to issuance. At the June 7, 2017
Board meeting the scope of work was reviewed and approved. The RFP was issued on
June 12, 2017. The contract term is for three (3) years with one (1) two-year option. Bid
Opening was held on Thursday, August 31, 2017. Four proposals were received.

Identified Need
This service provides safety and security for customers, employees, and the general
public during regular hours of operation at all CCRTA properties.

Law enforcement services provided by other transit authorities such as Capitol Metro,
San Antonio VIA, Laredo Transit, El Paso Transit, and Brownsville Metro were
surveyed. Capital Metro is the only transit authority whose security service is similar to
the one previously used at CCRTA. They contract out with the Austin Police Department
to provide security for their agency. The other transit agencies utilize security guard
services.

The charts below summarize the evaluation results:

SUMMARY SCORES
Approach | Qualification : :
& Work & Experience | Training ;Ie ‘8:22:'; g;:;_‘: g:;?;
Firms Plan References
(20 Pts. (15 Pts. (20 Pts. (70 Pts. (30 Pts. | (100 Pts.
Max) (10 Fis. Max) Max.) Max.) Max.) Max) Max.)
Off Duty
Services 17.80 14.40 12.60 15.80 60.60 27.37 87.97
Premier
Protection &
Investigation 14.00 12.60 13.60 9.80 50.00 27.60 77.60
Tommy
Cabello 9.40 7.00 7.80 10.00 34.20 30.00 64.20
Safety
Security
Service 6.40 6.40 7.00 7.40 27.20 29.63 56.83

5




BID TABULATION

: Three (3) Year Administration .
Firms Base Bid Fee Bid Total
Off Duty Services $2,004,350 $401,277.70 $2,405,627.70
Premier Protection & $2,350,099.00
Investigation $1,985,940 $364,159.00
Tommy Cabello $1,975,470 $219,307.50 $2,194,777.50
Safety Security Service $2,024,880 $197,500.00 $2,222,380.00

Note: Price difference between best value and lowest cost is $210,849.50

A comprehensive review of the proposals received was conducted by five CCRTA staff
members from Operations, Administration, Capital Projects, and Safety and Security
departments. The team'’s overall determination for the firm that would provide the best
value for the Authority was to award the contract to Off Duty Services. The following
are some of the added values included in the Off Duty Services proposal: 1) enhanced
coverage during or after a natural disaster, when local police resources are strained, by
providing armed, off-duty law enforcement from other non-affected cities. During a
natural disaster local law enforcement personnel must report to their respective law
enforcement agencies; 2) providing general liability insurance and Workers’
Compensation coverage for all of the police officers; thereby minimizing the Authority’s
exposure to liability; 3) administering the full payroll process; and 4) utilizing GPS
technology on a mobile app, Officer TRAK, to provide accountability for time worked.

Financial Impact
The annual cost will be $801,875.66. The total cost for the three (3) year contract will be
$2,405,627.70.

Recommendation

Staff requests that the Administration & Finance Committee recommend the Board of
Directors authorize the Chief Executive Officer (CEO) or his designee to award a
contract to Off Duty Services for Law Enforcement Services at all CCRTA properties.

Respectfully Submitted,

Submitted by: Mike Rendon

Direyr of Safety and Security
Final Approval by: /WL

Jorge Gfyz-Aedo

Chief Executive Officer




CORPUS CHRISTI REGIONAL
TRANSPORTATION AUTHORITY

Operations and Capital Projects Committee Meeting September 27, 2017
Subject: Operations Report for August 2017

The system-wide monthly operations performance report for August 2017 is included below for
your information and review. This report contains monthly and Year-to-Date (YTD) operating
statistics and performance measurement summaries containing ridership, performance metrics
by service type, miles between road calls, customer service feedback, and a safety and
security summary.

Detailed results are reported within the five sections outlined below:

1.

Ridership and
Performance

5.

Safety and "—_ 2R B-Line Service
Security s b Report

4.

Vehicle Customer
Maintenance |l Programs




1. System-wide Ridership and Service Performance Results

Boardings for all services in August 2017 totaled 407,166. This represents a 17% decrease as
compared to 490,942 boardings in August 2016 or 83,776 fewer boardings this month.

Ridership decline is primarily due to Hurricane Harvey which made landfall on August 25.
Services ended at 1pm on August 25. No regularly scheduled services were operated on
August 26 through August 28. Limited service resumed on August 29. A ramping up of
services occurred on August 30 and full service was operated on August 31 but ended at 8pm
each day due to storm damage and hazards. Full service resumed beyond 8pm on September
1 except for Route 55 serving Gregory and Port Aransas services.

Both months contained 23 weekdays, 4 Saturdays and 4 Sundays. Retail gas prices for
unleaded fuel cost about $2.12 per gallon compared to $1.94 per gallon in August 2016
Rainfall amounts for this month and August 2016 were identical at 4.12 inches.?

Passenger - N ]
Trips RTA System Monthly Ridership Trends
600,000
500,000
400,000
407,166
w2013 efg=2014 efi§=2015 =l@d=2016 «=§E=2017

300,000 = | i a | [ i i | — T ]

Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec

Months

1. GasBuddy.com historical data at http://www.gasbuddy.com.
2. Weather Underground historical data at http://www.wunderground.com.



The chart below shows average weekday ridership for all services.

25 000 RTA Average Weekday Boardings per Day
20,000
n
=
~ 15,000
@
e 10,000
@
&
© 5,000
(a8
0 Flexi-B
Vanpool (Contract B-Line R Feec: system
Route Bus Overall
Demand)
M Aug-2016 92.0 1.7 778 17,742 18,630
M Aug-2017 - 9.6 639 13,901 14,549
M % Change| -100.0% -45.8% -17.9% -21.6% -21.9%

The chart below shows monthly ridership results for all services.

RTA Monthly System Ridership

600,000
o
2 500,000
1S
l—
_ 400,000
5
S 300,000
o
%
@ 200,000
o
100,000
0 Flexi-B
Vanpool (Contract B-Line RRZﬁtZDI;?Ji— %3;3;?;“
Demand)
HAug-2016 2,116 406 17,899 470,521 490,942
H Aug-2017 - 220 14,689 392,257 407,166
H % Change -100.0% -45.8% -17.9% -16.6% -17.1%




The chart below shows YTD ridership results for all services. CCRTA has recorded 82,344
fewer boardings for a decrease of -2.3% in 2017 as compared to the same period in 2016.

RTA YTD System Ridership

4,000,000
3,500,000
» 3,000,000
2 2,500,000
2,000,000
@ 1,500,000
2 1,000,000
9 500,000
§ 0 Flexi-B
Vanpool (Contract B-Line RR-LAutZDI(B?Ji- %}:,set?arﬂ
Demand)
BYTD 2016 | 12,040 2,609 135,950 3,459,400 3,609,099
HYTD 2017 5,790 1,731 130,621 3,389,513 3,527,655
H% Change|  -51.9% -33.7% 3.9% -2.0% -2.3%

The following charts report system-wide productivity for the month of August 2017 vs. August

2016 and YTD figures.
PPH Passengers Per Hour (Monthly) PPH Passengers Per Hour (YTD)
25 25
- 2026 e 1 4 Aug-2016 19.69 1893  ®YTD 2016
HAug-2017 20
15.74 14,95 EYTD 2017 15.25 15.03
15 1 15 :
10 - 10 -
. 5 -
3 263 2.54
0 A 0 4
RTA Fixed-Route Bus  B-Line  RTA System (Overall) RTA Fixed-Route Bus ~ B-Line  RTA System (Overall)
PPM Passengers Per Mile (Monthly) PPM Passengers Per Mile (YTD)
3 3
©Aug-2016 @YTD 2016
uAug-2017 uYTD 2017
2 2
152 s 146 1.42
105 1.05
gde Bils 015 0.15
RYA Fixed-Route B-Life RIASHELET RTA Fixed-Route B-Line RTA System
Bus (OVera”} Bus (Overall)

10



The following table shows on-time performance of RTA Fixed-Route services.

Schedule Adherence Standard | Jun-A7 | Jul17 | Aug-17 |3-Month Average

Early Departure <% | 10% | 1.0% | 1.0% 1.0%

Departures within 0-5minutes | >8% | 91.7% | 88.0% | 86.3% 88.3%

Monthly Wheelchair Boardings {Nostandard| 5,962 | 6353 | 5363 5,959

Monthly Bicycle Boardings  [Nostandard| 9169 | 9401 | 8,090 8,887

On-ime performance sunveys with departures > 5 minutes [ate will be examined by Planning and
Transportation Departments. Corrective actions may follow.

The following detours potentially impacted on-time performance:

e Alameda Street (Ayers-Louisiana): To be completed Mid-2018
» Routes 5, 5s, 15s, 19, 29, & 29s

e Ayers Street (Santa Fe-Alameda): To Begin November 1, 2017: (1) year project.
» Routes 15s & 19

e Carroll Lane (Houston-McArdle): Began September 28, 2017: (1) year project.
» Route 17 has already been on detour for two months for utility work.

e Chaparral Street (Schatzel-Taylor to Begin October 1, 2017: (1) year project.
» Route 76 & 78 bond project detour

¢ Gollihar Road (Staples-Kostoryz): All phases to be completed Mid-2019
» Routes 32, 37 & 37s

¢ Greenwood Drive (Horne-Gollihar): To be completed November of 2017
» Routes 15s & 23

o Kostoryz Road (Brawner-Staples): To be completed mid-January 2018
» Routes 15 & 24s

¢ McArdle Road (Whitaker-Nile): To be completed late October of 2017
» Routes 37 & 66s

¢ Old Robstown Road (Leopard-Agnes-Hwy 44): Began August 22, 2017
» Route 12

e South Staples Street (Alameda-Morgan): To Begin November 17, 2017
» Routes 5s, 17, 29 & 29s

o South Staples St. (Brawner Parkway-Kostoryz): To Begin December 17, 2017
» Routes 17, 29 & 29s

o Williams Drive (Staples - Airline): To be completed October of 2017
» Routes 8s, 29 & 63

11



2. Purchased Transportation Department Report: B-Line Service Contract Standards &

Ridership Statistics

miles.

Productivity: 2.54 PPH did meet the contract standard of 2.50 PPH.

On Time Performance: 98.2% did meet the contract standard of 96%.

In Vehicle Time: 99.3% exceeded the contract standard of 95%.

Denials: 0 denials or 0.0% did meet contract standard of 0.0%.

Miles between Road Calls: 14,546.4 exceeded the contract standard of 12,250

¢ Ridership Statistics: 9,754 ambulatory; 3,934 wheelchair boarding's

Metric Standard | Jun-17 | Jul-17 | Aug-17 | 3-Month Average
Passengers per Hour 2.50 257 292 2.54 2.54
On-time Performance 96% | 96.9% | 97.6% | 98.2% 97.6%

In Vehicle Time 95.0% | 99.2% | 99.3% | 99.3% 99.3%
Denials 0.00% | 0.00% | 0.00% | 0.00% 0.0%

Miles Between Roadcalls 12,250 | 44,320 | 17,864 | 14,546 25,576
Monthly Wheelchair Boardings No standard 4,710 4,340 3,934 4,328

Customer Programs Monthly Customer Assistance Form (CAF) Report

For August 2017, Customer Service processed 65 Customer Assistance Forms (CAF’s) of
which 45 were verified as valid. This represents an increase from the 36 verified CAF’s in July
2017. There were 5 Commendations for the month of August.

'Number of CAFs
Reported
120

100

80

60

40 -

20 -

0 +—

Aug Sep Oct

Nov Dec Jan

I T

Feb Mar
_Months

12

T

Apr May Jun

Jul




3a. CAF Reports: Historical Trends

120

Number of CAFs
Reported

bd 2013 «1.1°2014 «iige?2015 ehd»2016 =i=2017

Yearly Totals: 600 551 721 691 489

0 I ] I I I T T T T T 1
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12
Months
3b. Reported Complaint CAFs w/o Commendations & Suggestions: Historical Trend
30.0
Peer Transit Agency Standard of (20) CAFs/100,000 Miles
25.0

24.7

20.0

15.0

10.0

5.0

0.0

Aug-16

Sep-16

B H of

Complaint
CAFs

118 emmStandard

Jan-17

Feb-17
Mar-17
Apr-17

May-17
Jun-17
Jul-17

Aug-17

13



#29SS Spohn South

3c. Route Summary Report for August 2017

#4 Flour Bluff Mini B #32 Southside Mini B
#5 Alameda #34 Robstown Circulator
#5x Alameda Express #35 Robstown South
#5s Alameda (Sunday) #37 Crosstown
#6 Santa Fe/Malls #51 Gregory Park & Ride
#12 Saxet Oak Park #63 The Wave
#15 Kostoryz #65 Padre Island Connector
. #16 Agnes/Ruth #76 Harbor Bridge Shuttle

#17 Carroll/Southside

#78 North Beach

#19 Ayers/Norton

#83 Advanced Industries

#19G Greenwood

#84 Lighthouse

' #19M McArdle

#90 Flexi-B Port A

#21 Arboleda

#94 Port Aransas Shuttle

#23 Molina

B-Line (Para-transit)

#25 Gollihar/Greenwood

Facility Maintenance

#26 Airline/Lipes Connector

Service Development

#27 Northwest

Safety and Security

#27x Northwest (Express)

Vehicle Maintenance

#28 Leopard Omaha

Marketing

#29 Staples

Transportation (Other)

MNOOZ 2000 =2=20=2NNON=O=BN

#29F Flour Bluff TOTAL CAF’'S 65
3d. Auqust 2017 CAF Breakdown by Service Type:
e o —

" CAF Category

ervice Stop Issues

it FixedRoute

Driving Issues

Customer Services

Late/Early — No Show

Fare/Transfer Dispute

' Dispute Drop-off/Pickup

Tie Down Issues

B-Line Call Lines

Facility Maintenance

Safety and Security

Service Development

Vehicle Maintenance

|

Marketing

‘Transportation (Other)

aalaaNNOOONMNDW

f'i'otal

(4]
-

Commendations

i

0
3
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
0
3
1

OWO OO0 200000 =W=N

o =l i
mm..a—xa_xoo-qooomm_hﬂoz

{

14




Conclusion:

During August 2017, RTA received 65 CAF’'s/Commendations regarding RTA Fixed-Route
Service, B-Line and Purchased Transportation; Five (5) of the 70 reported CAF's (August)
were commendations.

There were a total of 54 CAF’'s/Commendations received regarding RTA Service representing
83% of total customer contacts: 7 for Facilities Maintenance, 1 for Service Development, 7 for
Safety and Security, 1 for Vehicle Maintenance, 1 for Marketing and 37 for Transportation.

A total of 3 CAF's/Commendations were reported regarding B-Line service representing 5% of
the total customer contacts.

A total of 8 CAF's were reported regarding Contracted Fixed Route service representing 12%
of the total customer contacts.

(There was 0 issues relating to the detours and relocation of Six Points Station not included
with total CAF numbers).

Actions taken as a result of reported CAF’s include but are not limited to the following:
e Coaching and counseling
e Driver training
e Progressive disciplinary action as appropriate, group discussion/coaching in operator
meetings
¢ Discussion in supervisory meetings
o Examination of CCRTA operations policy

CCRTA documents CAF's to capture information regarding a wide range of issues from the
community’s perspective point of view. CAF’s are communicated to the Customer Programs
group via the telephone, e-mail, and letter or in person.

CAF’s are redirected to relevant management and supervisory staff for further investigation.
Customer Service staff will provide a prompt and written response at the conclusion of the
investigation to the customer within ten working days.

CAF’s play an important role as a quality assurance tool to identify issues regarding service;
they also inform CCRTA regarding education and training needs. CAF’s assist Service
Development in identifying problems around existing service and identifying underserved
areas. CAF’s also serves to guide policy development.

15



3. Vehicle Maintenance Department Monthly Miles Between Road Calls Report

For August 2017, 7,030 miles between road calls (MBRC) were recorded as compared to
9,562 MBRC in August 2016. A standard of 6,500 miles between road calls is used based on
the fleet size, age, and condition of CCRTA vehicles.

Miles Between Roadcalls (MBRC) Gillig vs Fleet Comparison
Previous 13 Month Period

14,000

12,000

10,000

8,000 -

6,000

4,000

2,000

Aug | Sep | Oct | Nov | Dec | Jan | Feb | Mar | Apr | May | June | July | Aug
2016 | 2016 | 2016 | 2016 | 2016 | 2017 | 2017 | 2017 | 2017 | 2017 | 2017 | 2017 | 2017

esp)\1BRC| 9,562 |7,910| 7,596 |9,415|10,32|10,21|11,02|11,61|9,403|11,64|9,506|7,579|7,030
emmmGoal | 6,500(6,500] 6,500 (6,500 (6,500 6,500|6,500 (6,500 6,500 6,500 |6,500|6,500| 6,500

MBRC is a performance gauge of maintenance quality, fleet age, and condition; an increase in
MBRC is a positive indicator. As defined by the Federal Transit Administration, a road-call is
the practice of dispatching a service vehicle to repair or retrieve a vehicle on the road. There
are two types of road-calls; Type | and Type Il. A Type | road-call is a major mechanical failure
that prevents the revenue vehicle from completing a scheduled revenue trip. A Type |l road-
call is a mechanical failure causing an interruption in revenue service.

16




4. Safety/Security Department Report

SAFETY SUMMARY

For August 2017, there were three (3) vehicle accidents. One (1) accident was determined to
be non-preventable (NP) and two (2) accidents were determined to be preventable. There
were twenty (20) customer-related incidents. CCRTA operators drove a total of 284513.7
miles. The year-to-date accident rate for the month of June is 1.58 per hundred thousand miles
driven. The desirable range for total collisions is at 2.0 or less.

The chart below illustrates the Year-to-Date accident rate. Please keep in mind that this chart
shows all vehicle accidents regardless of fault.

Year-to-Date Accident Rate = 1.58

2.50
2.30
2.00 2.05 1,92
1.7
1.55
1.50
1.4
1.00 097 W
38103
65 0.7
0.50
i ﬁ
0.00 g
Jan-17 Feb-17 Mar-17 Apr-17 May-17 Jun-17 Jul-17 Aug-17
e Standard B Monthly Accident Rate P NP
SECURITY SUMMARY

For August 2017, there were approximately 1,400 hours of security coverage was used for all
areas of CCRTA Operations. Officers arrested 1 individual for public intoxication, issued 18
criminal trespass warnings, arrested 1 individual for criminal trespassing, made 261 contacts
with individuals and responded to 4 other calls for service.

17



Respectfully Submitted,

Submitted by: Wesley Vardeman
Outreach Coordinator

Submitted by: Mike Rendon
Director of Safety & Security

Submitted by: Bryan Garner
Director of Maintenance

Reviewed by: Gordon Robinson
Director of Planning

Reviewed by: //—?, )
L;Il:enﬂﬁ%‘?‘T—’éh"ﬁlfiach

" Managing Director of Operations

Final Approval by:

Chief Eﬁ(ecutive Officer

18



